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OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
P. O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’'s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

01557

WEBSITE

www.kh-holdings.com

ETERGBFRERE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
P. O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

EFEERRIT

2 R 7T (EH) B R AT

2 RIR1T (BB BRAA
E LOERRTARAT
KHRITEBAA

EERBBFBILEIRE

EEFELERAA

BB
it A
I 2 3833857

EMIFESZ2H
33183301-04%

B 45 X 3R
01557
A8 b

www.kh-holdings.com

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F i 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EE®RE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to our shareholders the 2018/19 Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2019.

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by approximately 10.0% to
approximately HK$203,015,000 during the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: approximately HK$225,579,000). The loss and
total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$29,107,000 (2018: approximately HK$25,190,000).

As mentioned in last year’s Chairman Statement, due to the decrease
in the number of foundation contracts available from both the public
and the private sectors and keen competition among the market
players, the foundation industry was tough and challenging during
the year. The Group will continue to adjust its tendering strategies
by widening its customer base and implementing a tight cost control
so as to maintain its competitiveness and protect its shareholders’
interests.

As supported by the latest 2018 Policy Address of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “2018 Policy Address”) by the
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
land and housing is still one of the most important agendas in the
2018 Policy Address. The Group believes that there will be more
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong as a result
of the boosting of land supply for housing developments for both
the private and the public sectors as well as fostering infrastructure
development plans in the long term.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

BAIRR:

AANER KRR EEE Hxﬁﬁﬁﬁ?(fzﬁﬁﬂ)
sx((gxh)e(Exe)MARERESR
ARrREREMBAR(AEEDEE-F
—NEFE=ZA=F+-HLEFEZ=Z-N\/—
NFFRH -

AEBHE-_ZE-NF-A=+—HLFEZ
FEBE UG 258 D #910.0% 2 #9203,015,0007% 7T
(== — )\ : #9225,579,0007 7T) ° ANA &)
BEABRGHZ=_Z—NAF=A=1+—A8H1
FEZEBR2EREBEEL 529,107,000
780 (ZZ — )\ : #J25,190,0007% 7T) °

B E—FEZEFEREMER  BRARF
ErERkila@gft2amninEE0%E
BT m52REZRNHEFHA - 1
ETERDARZE BT mE - AEERSEE
HEERGZRE  hRERMANTPE YE
BB AR RO PR AR R - DAMRFF R ) RAR B
PR S

EEBFITREITERERERA—BZEE
BAfTHRE - N\FEBHRE (2N
FHEBRBEDNIET L RERNAZ
E-N\FHEERBEPREENHFEZ— -4~
SEEE ARERARAERAZEEHNE

[E 3 R I8 I+ 3 FELA&T’E@JELﬁ%%
B EITRBHIRE ZHE

Rit8 - BE




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRERE

Other than the keen competition in the foundation market in Hong
Kong, the uncertainties in the execution of foundation works,
conservative approach to certification and approval for foundation
works valuation by the customers; and the continuous increase in
the direct labour and material costs have undoubtedly increased the
overall operational risks of the market players.

Looking ahead, the Board still remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group will
continue to exercise due care in pursuing its existing core business
and promoting its development plans so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will also closely and carefully monitor the latest development in the
global economy and foundation industry in Hong Kong and adjust
its business strategies from time to time if required.

Apart from foundation services and leasing of machinery, the
Group will also try to explore and identify any suitable investment
opportunities in order to broaden our revenue base for maximisation
of return to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, customers and
suppliers for their continuous support, as well as our management
team and staff for their hard work and contributions.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EERENRRE DM

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation services (the “Foundation”)
and the leasing of machinery (the “Leasing”) in Hong Kong.

There were 8 active projects as at 31 March 2018. As at 31 March
2019, one of these projects has been practically completed while the
other 7 projects remain in progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 7 new projects have been
awarded to the Group and all of them remain in progress as at
31 March 2019. As such, there were a total of 14 projects in progress
as at 31 March 2019.

REVENUE

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by 10.0% from approximately
HK$225,579,000 during the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$203,015,000 during the year ended 31 March
2019. The decrease in Group’s overall revenue was mainly due to
the net effect of:

1. one large foundation project has reached the finalisation stage,
by which it contributed revenue of approximately HK$6,211,000
during the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared to
approximately HK$96,809,000 during the corresponding year
of 2018; and

2. increase in progress for active projects during the year ended
31 March 2019.

GROSS PROFIT/GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit decreased by 35.2% from approximately
HK$2,820,000 during the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$1,827,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019.
Such decrease was in line with the decrease in the Group’s overall
revenue as explained above.

The Group’s gross profit margin decreased from approximately 1.3%
during the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately 0.9% during
the year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the unexpected additional construction costs
incurred towards the completion stage of certain foundation projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE DN

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income increased from approximately
HK$137,000 during the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$15,921,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019. Such
increase was mainly due to a non-recurring imputed interest income
of approximately HK$14,610,000 arising from the unsecured and
interest-free borrowing amounting to HK$100,000,000 obtained from
New Grace Gain Limited (the former controlling shareholder of the
Company) (“New Grace Gain”) in May 2018.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses increased
by 32.5% from approximately HK$30,624,000 during the year ended
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$40,589,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The increase in administrative and other
operating expenses was mainly due to the payments of consulting
and professional fees of approximately HK$7,917,000 and written off
of contract assets of approximately HK$2,998,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately
HK$1,430,000 during the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$6,266,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019.
Such increase was mainly due to the imputed interest expenses
of approximately HK$4,616,000 arising from the unsecured and
interest-free borrowing amounting to HK$100,000,000 obtained from
New Grace Gain in May 2018.

NET LOSS

As a result of the abovementioned, during the year under review, the
Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$29,107,000 (2018:
approximately HK$25,190,000).

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group, including
bank borrowings and finance lease payables, decreased from
approximately HK$58,272,000 as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$44,134,000 as at 31 March 2019. As at 31 March 2019, these
banking facilities were secured by (i) the Group’s trade receivables
and retention receivables under contract assets or contract liabilities
of approximately HK$10,097,000 (31 March 2018: trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$16,992,000); (i) the Group’s
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$10,214,000 (31 March
2018: approximately HK$10,138,000); (i) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with total net carrying amounts of approximately
HK$41,530,000 (31 March 2018: approximately HK$53,312,000); and
(iv) corporate guarantee executed by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE DN

Save as disclosed above, pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement (as defined in the section “Corporate Governance Report
— Deed of Non-Competition” below) entered between Blessing
Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”) (the existing controlling
shareholder of the Company) and New Grace Gain, New Grace Gain
has provided to the Company an unsecured loan of HK$100,000,000
(“Unsecured Loan”) on 25 May 2018. The Unsecured Loan is
interest-free and repayable on 25 November 2020. New Grace Gain
shall not be entitled to demand early repayment and the Company
has no right to make early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
interests on certain borrowings were charged at floating rates. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy while
the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate risks
continuously and cautiously.

The Group normally meets its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and
bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had pledged bank deposits, and
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$82,014,000 (31 March
2018: approximately HK$22,728,000). The gearing ratio of the Group
as at 31 March 2019 (defined as the total borrowings divided by total
equity) was approximately 146.8% (31 March 2018: approximately
46.6%). As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 1.8 (31 March 2018: approximately 1.6).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not employ
any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

The Group has a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group, i.e. HKS.
As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions and assets
and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider adopting hedging policy should the need arise.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as those disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other significant investments,
material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended 31 March
2019.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this annual report.

Despite the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders
(as defined in the section “Corporate Governance Report —
Deed of Non-Competition” below), Blessing Well has no definitive
intention and plans for any acquisition or disposal of assets and/
or business of the Group as disclosed in the joint announcement
made by the Company and Blessing Well on 7 May 2018 (the “Joint
Announcement 17).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 137 employees (31 March
2018: 119 employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation
workers in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and package of
the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from the
Mandatory Provident Fund and in-house training programmes, salary
increments and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance. The total
staff costs incurred by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019 were approximately HK$52,521,000 (2018: approximately
HK$46,844,000).

EXARE -EARBHEE

Biza B mEAMTI7TRAREEN B2
Z-NF=ZA=+—RHLEFE FrEETE
ERHEMERKRE BEARBREE -

RIZB-NF=ZA=+—HRBEXRFHA
H EXgUERETAEARE  EAR
BRHEZEAGS -

HARABETEZRREHEH(ERRTXD
XERRE — THFZRE] ) BB
ARFBRBER_ZT—/\FHAALHELH
BarE(BHarEI)MEE  BELE
WS HEREEEER REBKNARE
BRkEE -

BAREIE

RIE-NF=A=+—H XEBEILEE
MEREAEE(CE-\F=ZA=1+—QH:
&)

HABE

iR a B MRMESAMREEI  AEE
R-ZF-NFZA=+—HABTFREKRHL
REIME -

E & & &R
RZEBE—NF=ZA=1+—8 KEEHEHF137
FZRE(CE-NEFE=ZF=+—8:119%E
B) NEBAZHEERTEMNMETA -
AEBEEMNTMNER RFBE LT HR
5o BRoAHIMEAE S RAEBEIIFEIIN - K
SE AR B G ARBFGE T RS &g
ERREEL HE-_ZE—NF=A=1+—
HIEFEA RNEBEEANB TR NEELY
52,521,000/ Jt (=& — )\ 4F : #946,844,000
B IT) °

BT EBIERGRA T 2018/19 F 3R

11



12

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, save as disclosed in the following paragraph,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the board and chief executive (“CE”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the Chairman of the Board. There is not a
post of the CE in the Company. The responsibilities of the chairman
of the Board and the CE of the Company are currently taken up by
the Chairman of the Board and the other members of the Board. The
Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Group to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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TEERA®RS

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

COMPQOSITION

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of
the composition of the Board and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 2 to 5 of this annual report in the section of “Corporate
Information” and on pages 49 to 54 of this annual report in the section
of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”, respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and
experience to the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors also provide their independent professional judgments
on the assessment of the development, performance and risk
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy of which
the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of the Board.
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TEERA®RS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors. The following tables illustrate the diversity of the Board
Members as of the date of this annual report:

RAFHREY BEEEHABRETEK T
RRABEAFHREAMESERENSZTT
b

Age Group
FEAER
Below 40 40 to 50 50-60
Name of Directors EENA 40BE AT 405% E505% 505% E 605k
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) & & 52 5 4 (£ /&) v
Mr. Guan Jingdong BRI v
Dr. Luo Tiejian B Bt v
Dr. Lu Haitian BB RIE L v
Mr. Liu Xin Bl 87 % £ v
Professional Experience
EXZR
Information Investment
technology/ consultancy
computing Banking and Accounting and
engineering finance and law accounting
ERRI,/ REBAR
Name of Directors EEHZ BlIR RITRME BitREE &5
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) BRELEFE) v
Mr. Guan Jingdong BEREE v
Dr. Luo Tiejian AEBRET \
Dr. Lu Haitian BEEREL v
Mr. Liu Xin BTt \

Measurable Objectives and Selection

The Board will take opportunity to invite female members over
time to join the Board when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to having an
appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience in
the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and
reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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TEERA®RS

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

N
==

KHEEB R

#ZBITREEIWT

BHE-_Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE - @5
EEgRERNTRERE2HEBERANERE

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BT8R 8E
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EREEE REZETE FMEEE BREF
Esged i i i AE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chen Rongsheng!&® PR B BB S A 09 3/11 N/A i 0/1 N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Guan Jingdong" BEFREED 3/11 N/A i N/AT i N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul® REXELER 9/ N/AZ 38 il 1 N/AZ i
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris? HBEREER 9/11 N/AT 3 11 N/AT i B N/A 3 A
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen® REBRZLO 9/ N/AZ 38 N/AA i A 1 N/AT 38 A
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITES
Dr. Luo Tigjian® BEBELO 3/M 1/2 N/AA i 0/1 11
Dr. Lu Haitian(4 g RELOR 3/1 1/2 0N 0N 11
Mr. Liu Xin( 586 ZIRT L0 oke 3/1 1/2 0N 0N 11
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael® BRAdIE k&P 8/11 1/2 1/1 N/AT i@ A N/ATiE A
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee® BEELEO 9/11 1/2 11 11 N/AZ i
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank® REBEAED 9/11 1/2 N/AT i 11 N/AT 3§ A
Professor Chung Hung Kwan, Barnabas® & $9 %@ 711 1/2 1/1 11 N/A i A
1. Appointed on 13 August 2018. 1. RZE-NFNRT=ZREZE -
2. Resigned on 13 August 2018. 2. RZZE—NFNA+=BEIT -
3. Chairman of the Board. 3. BEEGEF -
4, Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 4. REZEGER
5. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 5. HMEEEER -
6. Chairman of the Audit Committee. 6. BERLZE®ERE -

BT EBIERGRA T 2018/19 F 3R
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TEERA®RS

RELATIONSHIP
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has arranged
seminars for Directors as continuing professional trainings for
corporate governance and compliance purposes. Some Directors
also participated in other seminars according to their own
preferences.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the Group, including the
daily operations, business development and strategic planning. The
chairman of the Board ensures that all the Directors are properly
briefed on issues raised during the Board meetings and receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back on its decisions or

recommendations to the Board on a timely basis, unless there are
any legal or regulatory restrictions imposed on it.
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TEERA®RS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining the
relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; (c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (d)
assessing the Group’s corporate governance functions. The full
version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Audit Committee is currently made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Dr. Luo Tiejian and Dr. Lu Haitian. Both Mr. Liu
Xin (chairman of the Audit Committee) and Dr. Lu Haitian possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held 2 committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the preceding auditor,
RSM Hong Kong, (without the presence of the Executive Directors) to
discuss and review the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March
2018 and recommended the same to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee also held another meeting (without the presence of
the Executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results
for the six months ended 30 September 2018 and recommended
the same to the Board for approval.

Other than the above, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discuss the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.
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TEERA®RS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of three members
including Dr. Lu Haitian (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Cheng Rongsheng and Mr. Lui Xin.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2)  accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(65) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skKills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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TEERA®RS

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/
or advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(8)  The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director
to allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.
13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may
be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment

based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of three members
including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Dr.
Luo Tiejian and Dr. Lu Haitian.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting to review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

= AR 12 E = B
RIEEEEATAZ AL EBASHE - B
E-T-AS=A=1 - ALFEABRE
IR A X 2 H R E T

HEsEE (&)

Remuneration bands (HKS$)

Number of person(s)

A

500,001 to 1,000,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 2,500,000

500,001%1,000,000
1,5600,001% 2,000,000
2,000,001% 2,500,000

1
1
1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly
reviews and monitors the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and the senior management, and ensures
its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the auditor, World Link CPA
Limited, received HK$650,000 for provision of audit service and
HK$50,000 for provision of tax filing service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, World Link CPA Limited, about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 65 to 72 of
this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or

conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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In respect of code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA Function”). Although the
Company did not establish a standalone IA department during the
year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the IA Function at different aspects of the Group
as the Company considers that close and regular supervision by the
Executive Directors and senior management, and the maintenance
of internal control guidance and procedures on the Group’s critical
operational cycles could provide sufficient and effective internal
control and risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information and
are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to identify,
evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks
of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of
risk management and internal control for the Group and the Board
had conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year
ended 31 March 2019 through the Audit Committee. Same as last
year’s practice, the Company has engaged an external independent
internal control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control
procedures of the Group at both corporate level and business level
(as agreed by the Audit Committee). The review covered material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions during the year ended 31 March
2019. The internal control report has been circulated to the Audit
Committee for review and discussion. No significant areas of
improvement which are required to be brought to the attention of
the Audit Committee have been revealed.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the IA Function on an annual
basis.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFQO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated

areas of issues.

Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Hui Wai Yue, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography is set
out on page 54 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management”.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no changes in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

1. THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (THE “SHAREHOLDERS”) CAN
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (‘EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit 01, 82/F, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

HE-_Z-NAE=A=+—-B1LtEE &2
FARME((RARWENDHERMZLIERE
FHRANEINE R EEEZ T LRI5)N
BRI EEEI - F 2 ERESNATR
FHABEENaMERERE] & -

B
Gl

==

“NEF=ZA=+—BLEFE &R

WERXMFMERLE -

ARBIBCER (TR ) AR
FralKe (TIRERRRIKE D H
TR

RBADRECAR  BRRFRIASANE
—EREENELERAMFATD
REERARABRRAE LRENA
RAEABHBEAT Dz —RRERM
TUBH - ZBERANEATLAR
EFRRAWERZE  UEXES
CAMKRRESH KRS RIEZEZRPA
SIRMEMEIR  BABKEARNE
2EBREMBEARET - HEFER
ZEREZR-_T—HARBEARZK
R AIREFBRALARFRA TR
BITARAAKE MARBRAREHL
BRATENAEZTEREERKE
MELENMEEGERX

EHERMNEARPRESENREER
ABE VEIARAETELEMD
(it BE BN EM L @B 15 IR
BHESSIEE) UBRIAGME -
FRAERAASHBANBE 2 XHA
K MERHAELR BN EEHE
ANEE -

B EBEZER AR D 2018/19 FR

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERARE

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the members concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

° at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

THE PROCEDURES SHAREHOLDERS CAN
USE TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical
details, shall have been lodged to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, at least 7 days before the date of the general
meeting. The lodgement of notice should also be in compliance
with the other requirements of the Listing Rules.

THE PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

Any Shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/their
enquiries concerning the Company to the Board may deliver
his/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong with the address at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.
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As disclosed in the prospectus issued by the Company dated
8 March 2016 (the “Prospectus”), New Grace Gain and its ultimate
beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah,
Gilbert and Mr. Yue Suen Leung (together, the “Covenantors”)
executed a deed of non-competition dated 19 February 2016 (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) containing certain non-competition
undertakings given in favour of the Group with effect from the date
of listing of the Company on 18 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”)
and for so long as the shares of the Company remain so listed
on the Stock Exchange and the Covenantors are regarded as
controlling shareholders of the Company (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules), details of which are disclosed in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition
Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

With reference to the Joint Announcement 1 made by the Company
and Blessing Well on 7 May 2018, the Company has been notified by
New Grace Gain that after trading hours on 27 April 2018, Blessing
Well (as the purchaser), New Grace Gain (as the vendor) and its
ultimate beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Yue Suen
Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert (as the guarantors), entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which New Grace Gain agreed to sell and Blessing
Well agreed to purchase 300,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing 75% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of the Joint Announcement 1, for a total cash consideration
of HK$596,250,000 (the “Event of the Change of Substantial
Shareholders”). Completion of the abovementioned transaction took
place on 30 April 2018. Details of which are set out in the Joint
Announcement 1.

As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders,
New Grace Gain, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Yue Suen Leung
and Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert ceased to be the controlling and
substantial shareholders of the Company on 30 April 2018, and
accordingly the Deed of Non-Competition ceased to have effect on
30 April 2018.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to
be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others:

(1)  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4)  the Group’s liquidity position;

(6) interest of shareholder;

(6) taxation consideration;

(7)  potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8)  the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering AEBZHERABHEN TR AB2EBED
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders in BIEIRIE  HEMEEFTEN SRS  EmE
a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our ~ EA#FHERE - KEE  AEEMRIEZE
environmental, social and governance report for the year ended EZE-NF-A=T—HILEFEMRER -
31 March 2019 for the purpose of demonstrating our efforts on HERERME  LRABHERTIEMEA
sustainable developments to our stakeholders. BETERELNES -

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, RIRETIRIE LR RIM 827 T8l 2 3R 3%
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to HEREARERSIMRR  UHAKRER

the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts, namely environmental ttEmETD -
and social.
MAJOR RECENT AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS MHEFEREBENRIT
ENVIRONMENTAL IR
ISO 50001 : 2011* ISO 14001 : 2015*
Energy Management System Environmental
REREEREZR Management System
RIEEERA

* upgraded in May 2017 R=—Z—+ 4% FH JHH
* renewed in May 2017 M-ZT—+HEHBEH

BT EBIERGRA T 2018/19 F 3R 29
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it

)

Social

Family-Friendly Employer Happy Company
RERERE ¥

ISO 9001 : 2015*

OHSAS 18001 : 2007*
Occupational Health and Quality Management System
EEEHEER

Safety Management System
BERERZZEERZR

Green Organisation Manpower Developer
N

BERE

upgrade in May 2017 RZ=T—tHF R AAR
* renewed in May 2017 R-ZT—tFHABEH
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our

business activities.

A EIE

CIEEBE
$%lﬁﬁ#mILﬁL&¢m&mm%%
ERHUBEMERNYERERE -

To minimise environmental impacts concerning our site activities, we REEMBRTRYRBTERKNTE - &M
shall: g

Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

Prevent, reduce and eliminate pollution or any other
degradation of environment resulting from the production
process or from the use of goods and services.

Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources.

Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material
in our design and construction process.

Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in
an environmentally responsible manner.

Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

Obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses,
registrations and permits.

Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors.
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Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and
implementation.

Commit to continual improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group’s environmental management system was accredited by
Accredited Certification International Limited with ISO 14001 : 2015

and 1ISO 50001

: 2011 certifications.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:
The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations:

a.

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132
of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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A(l) EMISSIONS
EMISSIONS

(i) Since the Group did not have town gas fuel and town gas
consumption during the year, therefore no emission data is
available.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nitrogen Oxides
(NOx), Sulfur Oxides (SOx), and Particulate Matter (PM) emitted
from the consumption of towngas and the Group’s motor

A(l) BEBL Y

BER
() B PO o B 3 A T R R A R
R AT R

iy RBZEZE_Z—NF=ZA=1+—8LF
B - mAREELRRNERRELER
NRELw  FELEYREZYHIR

vehicles are shown as below: U

2019 2018
emission emission Decrease

—E-NEF —EN\F
HmeE e 8

(approximately (approximately
in gram) in gram) Percentage
Types of Emissions Bt 2B (#95) (8952) BoL
NOx RALm 663.6 672.3 (1.9)
SOx wmaky 11,472.0 11,6121 (1.2)
PM B2 Y 48.9 495 1.2

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group were mainly
generated from scope 3. The Group always aims to reduce waste
and minimise the consumption of electricity in order to tackle GHG
emissions issue.

AEENAERB(OAERBDINETIEE
HEF-8E  AKE-ERNORLEEY
MEEHRAE  AEREEREHRE
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The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended TRINTKEMREBEEZE=E-NF=RA=1—

31 March 2019. HIEFERRE B -
2019 2018 Increase/
Emission Emission (decrease)
—E2-h¥F —E-N\F
HmE Hepr g M GE D)
(approximately (approximately
in tonnes in tonnes
of CO,) of CO,) Percentage
(=&t (Z& b
Scope of GHG BREREzEHE i 49 WE 21) 1% 4o WE B0) BA L
Scope 1 — direct emission FEHE-EEERY 1,551.2 1,575.7 (1.6)
Scope 2 — indirect emission FoHE-BEERY 181.0 175.1 3.4
Scope 3 — other indirect FoEHE-EmEE
emission 71387 144,219.8 130,787.9 10.3
Total (a) 45t (a) 145,952.0 132,538.7 10.1
Total average floor area BIEHYEHEE
(approximately in m2) (b) (CEAARKED (0) 20,295.0 22,231.9 8.7)
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) mE(Zf bhkmE g~
(d)=(a)(b) 75 3K) (d)=(@)/(b) 7.2 6.0 20.0
HAZARDOUS WASTE BEEREY

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business BESFAM - BHIEERMOEBREL
does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during BEPTLEELEERNERBEEZEEY -
our construction process.
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the
year ended 31 March 2019, the total construction waste disposed of
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 30,046 tonnes
(2018: 72,214 tonnes) and approximately 227,936 kg (2018: 33,580
kg) respectively. Our Group always tries our best endeavor to recycle
practicable construction material in our design and construction
process.

mEBEEY

BENAREENEBREE  EHRMETBEHR
CEEETEEREY BEEBEMESER
HHEEHRHEUERKZ®K - BHE_FT—A
FZA=+—BHLFE ZEENHEER LT
S B E LR E Y B E 5 7 430,046
Wi (—Z — )\ : 72,21408) }& #7227,936 T &%
—F—)\F:33580F ) EHMIHKE
EET@EER  AEE—FHBHEKRTHA
HEEME -
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The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust REBNRERECE THEE - F BN EEK
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our  M{ERMAHE - SEBUR LB EBED
construction sites. e

-

=

Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly o REEME THSZENZENEE
N ]

purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of — AIMZ2REH R A B BIAHABERIZ £ -
Stage lIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no material BEMS  MESFAN  AFMEEKRFA
non-compliance with the applicable local rules and regulations relating to WHEEEREREHEN RAERBHENK -
air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land discharges, and generation FERBERR R LS AREEEEREE
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in all material aspects. FEEWMMEBAERE L ER LR -

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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A(ll) USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policy and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and treated
for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction process.
In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Al EiR{EH

AEEER TBETEANETIRZERRE
N K BE R LR - BRE ﬁJU%*
RER[AENDLE  AKECEBRERER

BHBERIAEERA DA?J&Q?E%&?@%%%@
EEREENEIR - flan - RASHRYK
SREEETHEIREK BREEMNETE

RAEEEMR - U ARERRMNME
15 K AE AR A A K

RRAREZEEUREL  BRMAB/E

SREAKRTELEERNEE -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the energy consumption by REBEEZE_T-—NF=A=+—HLEFE &K
type in total of the Group are showed as below: BEiZEEI MR EFRAENROT
2019 usage 2018 usage
—E-NEF —N\&E Unit/total Increase
FEHE FHE floor areas* 1% 40
Direct/Indirect HiE ME (approximately)  (approximately) B Percentage
Energy by Type R zEE (#9) (#9) LM E R BOL
Qil 1RO 409.0 378.3 kWh/m? 8.1
FREF5XK
Electricity BN 16.5 14.6 kWh/m? 13.0
FREF75K

* Total floor area was 20,295.0 m? in 2019 (2018: 22,231.9 m?)

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within our
Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further disclosed
in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources” below.

* ZE-NFRMEHMEEA20,205.0FFK(=ZT—N
£ :22,281.9F 75 K)

AEE-ERAEEANREREREIAE]

BRRES - BHEFRE-—SRENTXIER
BRRRERI—& -
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TOTAL PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Due to the business nature of our Group, we believe that it is not
applicable to our Group.

A(lll) THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal impact
to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
including design, review, monitoring performance as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Compliance with the environmental aspects of the applicable
legal requirements and the other requirements to which the
Group subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles
throughout our business; and

° Continual improvement.

The Group was awarded Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification,

Energywi$e — Certificate — Basic Level, by Environmental Campaign
Committee.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

HRKmATABERMENEE

ERNAEENEREE  RARRLEEE

WA EARAEHR -

Al IRIER K ARE IR

AEEE-RBTIHERERENET - A
SERNEBERAUKERT USEKEDY
REMERNEIMAEEZEREREKE -

AEERUTRE - RORHEHBHELR
NIRRT

o  EIINEBRERMEETRRERE
BRER e EERTBR F
REMARLEEBENEREERNSR

e  AKREETRERIEOERAREENX
M E AR

o ENRARBENUEREZEBHEBITO
THBERBEENRER:

e RHEBTHEI BREINHEMNE
BRTHE BURERZFRA R

s  RENE-

AEEERFSEDZECEREET ALK
*ﬁu/u\n — lé;xﬁ%_ AR Bl o




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR #HERERERE

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within
our Group mainly through the following measures:

Office power saving: Recommendation to turn off
lights and air-conditioning when not in use and log
off computer and turn off the screen when not in
use or during lunch hours.

MOEHE ERREFTERRARSREREE
ERNEFALNEFTEREKRSIN FHRAEE
HEKKEBEHBTRE -

AEETREBTIEERARERNEEH#
ERERIGE IS

Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for document review purposes, reduction in printing

and use of recycled paper.

EARMA: EAEBREMERRGWBE XM - B ENLEBREREDUAE -

BT EBIERGRA T 2018/19 F 3R
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o Reduction of the usage of bottled water:
Recommendation to use reusable cups to reduce
the use of plastic bottles.

o RAERBEIK: BEREM A BRKKRERD
ERBE -

=

o LED T8 lamps: Implementation of LED T8 lamps phase by phase for environmental protection purpose.

o T8LEDE: SHRKETS LEDBIERBRRUE -

- -

° Noise control: Site working hours restricted to 7:00
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. (except for those construction
sites being granted construction noise permit).

e REEH HMBIERERER/FLIFESBR b
TRIE(ERN M RERZRERIFFAIERIN -
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B. SOCIAL
B() EMPLOYMENT

EMPLOYMENT

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2019, the Group had 3 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486),
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 487) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) of
the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2019, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify any material
non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.

The Group has been recognised as a Family-Friendly Employer
since 2014 by the Family Council. The Group was also recognised
as a Happy Company in 2017 by the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation and Manpower Developer in 2018 by Employees

Retraining Board.

» =

B. #HE
B() {EE

(=Y

AEENERBREEEATBE  Ha2H
BEEAARFERERIFEAR (R IER] -
IEHRRON ~ R - ik IR REAMOR
HEA - BELRRHIE) R_F-NF=
A=t—H AEEAILIIFEFEE - A&
B EBBERITEREBBEANETE(RRE
&) - BB EDIFE282EEFBRHER) -
BB AP 486 EME A B F(FLER) 5B »
BB IEDIFAB0ECIE BB E D) - FAE X
{5155 487 B CRIRIAR R H) R B B A B 55608
BE(REIEM/RIDHET - BE-FT-NF=
A=t—HBLFE #EEFMRAN  HAL
BRRAEMNEATARLBIENERE -

AEEEERRRMEFTFY - BEA - T(F
B8 RH - BTEA - BTIHIIA RGER
ERZ2THNEE AEETAREETH
EMEFBEESERBNTIERRTEALE
EEXURBE/ER -

AEE-EHNRBIRBBRFHNLY
TBPEAEAL - S HITRBFS -

AEEE_ZT-NFEEFREZSFIR/IR
ERERE] Z AEBTIR_T—+
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 137 (2018: 119) employees.
Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers in Hong
Kong. Below are certain key charts in relation to our employment

aspects.

2019 Employee distribution by gender
TE-AFRHERESZE LA

15%

® Male
B

Female

g i

2019 Employee distribution by age
TE-NFRFREASZEILA

® 18-30
31-45
® 46-60

@ o0

42 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

RZZE—NF=ZA=Z+—H AEEHF137E
(ZE—N\F 1195 EE - XEEKHHE
EAEBMETIA - AT ARERH EIERH
MNETFTEBEE -

2018 Employee distribution by gender
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2018 Employee distribution by age
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B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY

-

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safety-working
environment which maintains a high standard of the safety, health
and welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measure
to protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and
to take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to
the nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded as
the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded zero reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: zero).

Bl) RERZZ

-

AEBZBERLZE2BREHEAE—HAR
mRELZE  BEMENOZE2TIERE
YERBAEEBRYEAIITHNE 2 HEERE
FIEREBTIHEZABRARELE » WEA
B R S A0 A R 3 A A LB o

BT EPIRAORE BEREERAERMER
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MEEBREREI BERBERMBE
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, there was no occurrence of any fatal accident.

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SAFETY TRAINING
Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions.

Our safety department is responsible for advising and assisting
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety
information and training.

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with
our policy and safety procedures.

To ensure our safety policy is well implemented, we will provide
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action,
including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety
policy and requirements.

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel

positively implement the safety policy and make every effort to meet
the target of zero accident.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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Our Corporate Safety Management Committee updates our safety
policy annually in accordance with the latest legislation and safety
regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system
has been certified in compliance with OHSAS 18001 : 2007 by
Accredited Certification International Limited.

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides an in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group committed not
less than 1,500 man-hours to both external and in-house training.

B(IV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.
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B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group was assessed and certified by Accredited Certification
International Limited that our quality management system, which
governs our daily operation for quality control and improvement, had
met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 : 2015.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
are formally notified and required to comply with our policy and safety
procedure.

The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(VI) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation services
in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and services we provided have
limited relationship with advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the
Group is highly committed to delivering quality services to our customers
through flexibility and capability in providing of foundation designs,
contributing professional advices and making appropriate adjustments.
We tackle any issue raised by our customers by rectifying it within a
reasonable time and ensuring our customers’ satisfaction.

DATA PRIVACY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights and we have marketed our business in
Hong Kong using @@ as our trademark which was properly registered
in Hong Kong in 2015. The Group would only use lawful software
licenses for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in
our staff manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential
information.
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B(VIl) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of
our staff.

A formal whistle-blowing policy was adopted in the second quarter
of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our staff during the year ended 31 March 2019.

B(VIIl) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously. The Group donates to certain charitable organisations
every year.
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As a Family-Friendly Employer and a Happy Company, we always
show our kindness and care to our staff. There are written policies
in our staff manual, including the education sponsorship program to
our staff, a long service award to our staff for working over 5 years,
a continuous 6 days’ paternity leave for each confinement of our
male staff’s spouse/partner, a continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for
our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave for our staff
for social responsibilities purposes.

Besides, there are at least three corporate event functions for our
staff annually. In order to make these events joyful and successful,
our senior and top management are always generous to make kind
contributions on occasion such as “lucky draw gifts” or “games
prizes” to our staffs.

LUCKY DRAW EVENTS

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREAREEREBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, is an entrepreneur in
the PRC with his business and investment involved in various sectors
including integrated circuit card and electronic labels, e-commerce,
fintech and virtual game platform. He obtained the EMBA degree
jointly awarded by National Taiwan University in Taiwan and Fudan
University in the PRC in January 2014. Mr. Chen has more than
17 years of experience in information technology. He has worked
in New Doone Technology Company Limited* (¥ @& & &R
‘A|]), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tatwah Smartech Company
Limited (1L ZEF LR R M B R AF]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002512) and is principally
engaged in development of radiofrequency identification technology
like integrated circuit cards and electronic labels since 2001 with his
current position as the chief executive officer. Since 2014, Mr. Chen
has been appointed as the director and chief executive of Tatwah
Smartech Company Limited. Mr. Chen also invests in companies
which are principally engaged in e-commerce, fintech or virtual game
platform in the PRC.

Mr. Guan Jingdong (“Mr. Guan”), aged 55, has over 25 years
of experience in banking and finance. He obtained the bachelor
of finance and taxation from Heilongjiang University in the PRC
in December 2003. In April 1993, he joined the branch credit
management department of China Everbright Bank. Later in February
2001, he was promoted to be the assistant of the branch general
manager. He was further promoted to be the vice branch general
manager in January 2002. In March 2009 he served as the branch
general manager until July 2014 when he left China Everbright bank.
After leaving China Everbright Bank, he was employed by Runxing
Financial Leasing Company Limited* (BEIg &R EBGR A a)) as the
vice president from July 2014 to November 2017. From October 2017
to April 2018 he worked in Tatwah Smartech Company Limited* ( F
I E R B AR B R A A]) as the vice president.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Luo Tiejian (“Dr. Luo”), aged 56, has over 35 years of
experience in research and development of computer engineering.
He obtained the bachelor of computer software in Guangxi University
in the PRC in July 1984. He then completed the postgraduate
program in computer application in the 6th Research Institute of
China Electronics Industry* (R BIEFLEEE/SHITAT) in the PRC
in March 1990 and the doctor of computer software and theory in
the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (41 B R} £z K £2)
(formerly known as the Graduate University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences (FEIFIZEMEAEPFT) in the PRC in March 2001,
Previously he worked in Guangxi University and was later transferred
to the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences in January 2001.
He has been a professor in the University of Chinese Academy of
Sciences since February 2001.

Dr. Lu Haitian (“Dr. Lu”), aged 39, has over 14 years of experience
in accounting and law. He obtained a bachelor of international
economic law from Nanjing University in the PRC in June 2001, a
master of laws from the University of Liverpool in the United Kingdom
in December 2002, and a Doctor of Philosophy from the National
University of Singapore in June 2007. He served at the School of
Accounting and Finance in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
first as a visiting lecturer in law from September 2005 to June 2007,
Assistant professor in law from June 2007 to June 2012, Associate
Professor in law from July 2012 to June 2018, and Professor in law
since July 2018. Since January 2018, Dr. Lu has been appointed
as the Associate Dean (External Relations and Development) in the
Facility of Business of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr. Lu has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as Melcolot Limited), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8198) since July 2017.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

BYFBTES

EMBET(EEL] som NERIRE
ﬁﬁ%éé?ﬁ%*ﬁ?@%i%@ﬁ%&ﬁ\ pAWAN L
FLARGHEERARSERUFEREL
B - WEERN — jULTE A& %EPI
FIXRHEMEAERERBERTRE
BER-ZZTET-F=Af ?EEPIHLW*K
Li(ﬁ WAPBEMERMETLER) ERAITR

MmBERBLIRIE - RZABERNEARKX

CHEERR-_ZET-F-ARETEMER
K%of&é_fg F_AE-—EETEHE
RERKXSHE -

PEBXRIEL(TREEL]) - 395 NEFT A
BREBEABAFLR - KR _ZET—FRX
ERSTEERARRRKEEERELE
i RZET_F+= ﬂﬁﬁ%?ﬁlﬂ%ﬁk
%/iﬁﬁﬁig‘14&5/\_7 7JC£|E/\HZ
%ﬁﬂuﬁlikéﬁéﬁiﬂuoﬁﬁ ff
j(%an-l—&féﬁﬁﬁ'r %ﬂﬁAﬂ*{£/£fjWFﬂu§
- BZZEZELFAAEZZE——F AL
PEEPEHER BT —FLAZ-F
—NFERAEXREEHEHRE BTN
FLrABEDEZH R -8B T N\F—H
B EELERERBBEIAEIRNER
BRI (AEHIIEENIARE) -

EEITA T +tFtAREZTAZLE
ERAERAFR(AWBAMRREREARAT
—MREBBHERSHMBERAR(HZFAT))
GEM EmH AR - BHAH:8198) M IE L
JEHITES ©



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERE

Mr. Liu Xin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 41, has over 18 years of experience
in investment consultancy and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor
of Accountancy in Jinan University in the PRC in June 2001. He
worked in PriceWaterhouseCoopers for 8 years with his last position
as the senior manager in the advisory department. He then served
in Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Company Limited* (&
BEESRB(EBR)BR AR (@ subsidiary of Fosun International
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 656))
from July 2011 to September 2015 as the chief financial officer of
Fosun Kinzon Capital. From October 2015 to February 2019, he was
the chief operating officer and a member of the investment committee
of Shoreline Capital Management Ltd. Since March 2019, he has
been the chief operating officer of Vision Plus Capital. Mr. Liu is
a registered accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since December 2004.

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul (“Mr. Yu”), aged 69, is an executive director
of a major subsidiary of our Group, K. H. Foundations Limited (the
“K. H. Foundations”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
marketing work and contract strategy of the K. H. Foundations and
is appointed as an authorised signatory under specialist contractor
licensing. Mr. Yu is also appointed as the Technical Director to act
for the purpose of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for K. H. Foundations. He has over 40 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu founded K. H. Foundations in 1985 and has
been the director of K. H. Foundations since then. Over the 30 years
of directorship in K. H. Foundations, Mr. Yu had the opportunity to
go through various development and construction projects of both
the public sector and the private sector in Hong Kong including, but
not limited to schools, hotels, infrastructure projects and government
buildings.

Mr. Yu graduated from Syracuse University in New York, the United
States and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering and
a Master’'s degree in Engineering Administration in May 1973 and
December 1974, respectively. In 1981, Mr. Yu was a director of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals and was subsequently elected as chairman
of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1988 and served as chairman
until 1989.
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Mr. Yu was appointed by the government to sit in various advisory
bodies since 1982. He was appointed as a member of the Board
of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries from 1982
to 2003, a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board from 1992 to
1996, a member of the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary Board
Panel from 1993 to 1996, a member of the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education from 1994 to 1998, a member of the
Administrative Appeals Board from 1994 to 2000, a member of
the Hospital Authority from 2001 to 2009 and the chairman of the
Hospital Governing Committee of Tuen Mun Hospital from 2004 to
2014. Currently, he is a member of the Hospital Governing Committee
of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital, and a member of the
Advisory Board of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. He was awarded
Justice of the Peace (Non-official) by the government in 1989 and
is a member in the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in
1994. In 2007, Mr. Yu was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He was
admitted as a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Builders
and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers in May 1997.

He is currently an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00513), company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 52, is an executive
director of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Yeung is primarily responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the K. H. Foundations,
including daily operations, business development, strategic planning
and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 20 years of experience
in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He took part in the
foundation works and superstructure construction works in
construction projects of both the public sector and the private sector
in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools, hotels, residential
premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in
2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during
the same period. He is also the director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited, K. H. Machinery Limited and K. H. Piling & Engineering
Limited since each of their incorporation date, respectively. He has
been appointed as a director of Tactful Building Company Limited
(“Tactful”) since July 1993. Tactful is a Registered General Building
Contractor, and is mainly involved in building construction works.
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Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’'s degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession.
He was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992.

Ms. Chan Lai Kuen (“Ms. Chan”), aged 55, is an executive director
of K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing
the finance and account management aspects and as well as the
corporate finance functions in K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, taxation and financial
assignments especially with companies in Hong Kong construction
industry. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2006 and was appointed as
a director of K. H. Foundations during the same period.

Ms. Chan was appointed as a director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited in 2012.

Ms. Chan was the assistant accountant of Wing Fai International
Limited from 1994 to 1998 and has been the accountant of Tactful
since 1998, respectively and is currently a senior accounting
manager of Tactful. Tactful is a Registered General Building
Contractor, and is mainly involved in building construction works.

Ms. Chan obtained her Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy from the
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as The City University of
Hong Kong) in November 1992. She is a Certified Public Accountant
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2000. She has also been a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2004.
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Mr. Wong Wai Nam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 56, serves as the director
— technical of K. H. Foundations. He is responsible for overseeing
the technical designs of foundation works and technical department
of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Wong joined our Group as director —
technical in March 2014 and has over 30 years of experience in
the foundation, construction and engineering industry. Mr. Wong
obtained a higher certificate in civil engineering from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
November 1986. Mr. Wong became a Registered Structural Engineer
in Hong Kong in August 2000 and a registered inspector in Hong
Kong in May 2012. He has been admitted as a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since September 1998 and as
a Chartered Engineer of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the
United Kingdom, since February 1998. Mr. Wong was employed as
technical director of Meinhardt (C&S) Limited from 2009 to 2014.
Mr. Wong was previously employed in the foundation, construction
and engineering industry with several companies and the Housing
Department, the executive arm of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
between 1983 and 1992.

Mr. Wong was appointed as a director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited in 2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hui Wai Yue (“Ms. Hui”), aged 42, has over 18 years of
experience in company secretarial and tax services industry. She
obtained a Bachelor of Accountancy in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 1999. She worked as the Tax Accountant |
in the Tax Department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
1999 to May 2000. She was then employed by PKF Hong Kong (an
audit firm) as Tax Manager from May 2000 to August 2011 and was
transferred to PKF Tax and Business Consultants Limited as tax
director in September 2011 until her resignation in 2014. Since June
2016 she has been employed by MCGI Consultancy Limited as its
principal in the company secretarial and tax services department.
Ms. Hui is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since April 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8 to 11 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of Directors’ Report.
In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group has also
reviewed its environmental policies and performance from time
to time in order to minimise the environmental impacts from our
operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in
order to maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

During the year, there was no material dispute or argument between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers and
subcontractors.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 29 to 47 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and
other relevant laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned,
there were no material breaches of or non-compliance with the
relevant rules and regulations by our Group that have significant
impacts on the business and operations of our Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 28.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 167.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 168 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 February 2016
(the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). No share option has been granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2019, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised), of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to approximately
HK$88,237,000 (2018: approximately HK$84,148,000). The share
premium account of the Company is available for distribution or
paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Articles and provided that immediately following the distribution
or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$250,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 63.2% of the Group’s total revenue
and sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 22.3% of the Group’s total revenue during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 93.0% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 70.8% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the
largest supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the subcontractor of
the Group accounted for approximately 42.8% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 22.4% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2019 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)*

Mr. Guan Jingdong*

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul (Chairman)"

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (Deputy Managing Director)”
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen”

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Luo Tiejian*

Dr. Lu Haitian*

Mr. Liu Xin*

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael®

Mr. Cheng Yan Kee"

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank®

Professor Chung Hung Kwan, Barnabas”"

*  (appointed on 13 August 2018)
" (resigned on 13 August 2018)
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In accordance with articles 108 and 109 of the Articles, Mr. Liu
Xin, being Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. Chen
Rongsheng as an Executive Director, will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 49 to 54 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the year and as
at the date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which
the Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a
Director, and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which
he is acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party
Transactions” in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS ESIRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND EENAAQE LA AEN#EZ

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of Directors in RZE-—NF=ZA=+—80 EFRERQF
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its ~ SKH BB LB (F& BB S5 M B EENEXV
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), H)Mth c HEARORESFTHBERES
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under % & Bi & 15| 535216 B F 17 B M & i M Fr
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and MEBNERRAE  HIRBEEZETAAS
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows: TREARRRARBRNEZRAENT

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company () RAQXTEHERNIFE

Number of
shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
Fits @&
EENA AEME EERGHE IREBSL
Mr. Chen Rongsheng Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 75%

(“Mr. Chen”) (Note) corporation
PREDEESEA(BRAEE D) REZEE#ER

(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of (i) R ZEEERNITE
associated corporation

Number of Percentage of

shares held shareholding
Name of associated Nature of in associated in associated
Name of Director corporation interest corporation corporation
R EE IHHEEBER
EEHA HEEERN BB REHE Fii5 g% 8B IEREBE DL
Mr. Chen (Note) Blessing Well Beneficial owner 1 100%
Bk 5 A (BT 1) ‘= EmHEAA
Note: B2
These shares are directly held by Blessing Well. Blessing Well is wholly- ZEROBEERE BEAMBEREERE
owned by Mr. Chen and therefore, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested BE At BREESFRBEGKG  BRELE
in the shares held by Blessing Well under the SFO. WEARBEERENRMPEAER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the following interests and short positions of
5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS IN

Y

TERRRARA 2 ER

RZFE-NF=ZA=+—8 ATRARER
AR BB RDE% A E 2R KRR
ERENARARIEE 7 & B E R HI %336
kA BT 2 e as B RO A

Number of Percentage of
shares held/ interest in our
Name Nature of interest interested Company
Fr¥s HE L N
naE BB BEME EEZRAHE ExzEs
Blessing Well (Note 1) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%
&1z (M sk Em#EAA
Mr. Chen (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
BR 5 A (B[ 3E1) RV EEE R
Note: B 2
1. These shares are held by Blessing Well. Blessing Well is wholly-owned 1. ZERGBEESE BEHERTEZEHR
by Mr. Chen. Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the shares of the B BIBEFARARBAEKRI - RAEERBRE SR
Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO, while Mr. Chen is the sole BEFHENARRROTEE#EZ  MRE
controlling shareholder of the Company. ERARBRME—ZERAEE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person, other B EXFTEEEIN  RZE—NF=ZA=1

than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure
of Interests” in this report, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the joint announcement published on 7 August 2018 (the
“Joint Announcement 2”), immediately after the close of mandatory
unconditional cash offer, a total of 31,750,000 Shares, representing
approximately 7.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the Joint Announcement 2, are held by the public.
Accordingly, the Company cannot fulfill the minimum public float
requirement set out under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Subsequent to 7 August 2018, the Company arranged placement
of the Company’s shares on hand to restore the required minimum
public float. Pursuant to the announcement published by the
Company on 30 October 2018, immediately upon completion of a
placing of 68,250,000 shares in the Company, a total of 100,000,000
shares, representing 25% of the issued shares of the Company are
held by the public. As such, the public float of the Company has
been restored to not less than 25% of the issued share capital of
the Company in compliance with the Listing Rule with effect from
the completion of the placing.

Save as mentioned above, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 March 2019 and up to the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no material events occurring after 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM”)
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 will be held on
a date to be fixed by the Board, and a notice convening the 2019
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 16 April 2019. World Link CPA Limited has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 16 April
2019 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of RSM Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 have been audited by World Link CPA Limited.

World Link CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of World Link CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZEARE

Woernld Link CPA Limited
EEXRE st etmSEAEaRAT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H. Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
73 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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B A% BT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FRFEZEE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, AREZERABBESZ2EXEHE  RA
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HAHBEGEEYBERERZIERRAEEY
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in FH REFEHREEEREEEREUE
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as HERHEERRERE MESETEHZSE
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide EFERHEENZER BEBACBERE
a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we ZEIRR:

identified are:

1) Revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts; and 1) BRERAOZWER&EFER: &
2)  Liquidated damages for delays in completion of a contract 2) BHEBAHNEKERZENS

Key Audit Matter
HARELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESEERPEERRERSENSE

Revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts

BEAHZWEREFED

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(g),
critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(a) and
relevant disclosure in note 7 to the consoligated financial
Statements.

2R E I ERENTHYPEAX 5K FE - B i@ E
BHEFR F EWZR N7 7% E -

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts amounted
to approximately HK$202,806,000 for the year ended
31 March 2019.

(E_E-NFZA=1T—BHILFE X BEEEXGESE
A 49,2 W 2% %9 4202,806,0007% TT °

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the input method based on direct measurements
of the contract costs incurred to value the contract work
performed.

SRR REARANEERHEELEESOKNAEETK
EHNIREBENEETERSHEEL®R -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation of
revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts
included:

%fﬁ?ﬁ HERETHEEROZKE L GEMNERZREF
B

—  obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
FRAEEENTEEINW BEESMBEESYN
WEITRIER TR :

—  corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such
as customers’ correspondence;
iﬁ%@%ﬁ?\\%ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁwg}f%E%T)%E%E%EI’UI
ﬁ B

— examining, on samples basis, the contracts and

certifications of work performed;
AHMBEELEEESORETK I TIEERE:

—  performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;
HRESEENNAETRAERS

— discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs to complete, including taking into account the
historical accuracy of such estimates;

AR R TRREIRE AR S KR KR T ) TR OB K AR
2t BEZEAHEBRER I BEERNT:
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Key Audit Matter
HAREEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
and profit recognition involves a significant degree of
judgement made by management, with estimates being
made to:
AREBzEAME - BB EARWE KM EREN
ERRBEZHE  UHATEEERBR:

— assess the total contract costs;

FHERA A

— assess the stage of completion of the contract;

AHEEHZ TR

— assess the revenue and costs associated with
variation orders;

AERTREEEERH 2 Was kKA :

—  appropriately provide for liquidated damages for
delays in completion of the construction works;
and
MRERTHKBEIRZENIELHEESRE X

—  appropriately provide for loss making contracts.

REBBEANIELESBE -

comparing the percentage of completion for contracts
to the proportion of contract costs for works
performed to date bear to the total estimated contract
costs;
2ELELSETK IR RGBSR
BBl AKX A S

using the knowledge obtained from the above
testing, assessing whether any provisions for
liguidated damages or loss making contracts made
by management were appropriate; and
ERB L ARERSzRM  FEEEEREOS
FEBENIEHZEMBERETAE R

assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”.

IHEEEFER IREFREANSGOR S EET
EEBMBRMELENBE SR IEFEOKEINER

BT EEZERBIRAT 2018/19 Fif

67



68

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A% BT RS

Key Audit Matter
HAREEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

Liquidated damages for delays in completion of a
contract

FH—ESHNTHERZENS

Refer to the critical judgements and key estimates
in note 5(f) and relevant disclosure in note 20 to the
consolidated financial staterments.

R4 A BT R W 76 E ZE H BT R F ZRE R 7
2076 B #2 5 ©

The Group has been negotiating the final settlement
amount of a completed contract with a customer. The
customer indicated that it is seeking to deduct from
the final settlement amount the sum of approximately
HK$23,450,000 for liquidated damages arising from
delays in completion of the contract.
EEE-HE-ZFFPERHCTKANNRREE
PE - BFRTHARBOTKEREENEOSH
ST B 4% 45 B IR 4923,450,00078 7T °

The directors are of the opinion that the negotiations
with the customer are still in progress and based on
the opinion of an independent professional consultant,
believe that the customer’s claim for such liquidated
damages is unlikely to succeed and accordingly, the
Group has not recognised any amounts in respect of
liquidated damages for delays in completion of contract
in the consolidated financial statements.

EERR BEPHNERMDAEETT  ARBBIEXR
BERNER BEFRRTFLPABRNTCHRRAIKNA B
Y Bt EEBEVTERGEVBHRIPHEBES
HWERERZ B ERETAE -

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgement made by the directors
in determining the possible outcomes of the negotiation
with the customer and whether it is necessary to
recognise any amount in respect of liquidated damages
for delays in completion of contract.
HREFRNETEZFEFNARERLERAENE
A THERZ ENHRBAEAERFTIELERKR
HE HESHLAEERNREREREE -
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Our procedures in relation to the liquidated damages for
delays in completion of contract included:

BEFHANTANERZENSHBZREFEHE:

— examining the related construction contract
documents and correspondence with the customer;

EEHAZEANXHRRAZEPBER

— examining the analysis prepared by the independent
professional consultant engaged by the Group;

EE BEEEMZEBYEXRERRENON:

— evaluating of the independence and professional
competence of the independent professional
consultant engaged by the Group;
it BEEEMZREBUEXEERNBIERER

&k,
Be

—  challenging the basis for the Group’s assessment
that it is not necessary to recognise any amounts
in respect of liquidated damages for delays in
completion of contract; and
Bit EEBERRETHRERENTKIERZELD
THAEMES BT EELE R

— assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in respect of the status, progress and estimated
outcome of the negotiation with customer as set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
i EEEAHGESM B mMRMT20MEEETS
HERzRE EEREFERZREESRH -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIYRBAEHE

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIYRBAEHE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06633

5/F, Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeEEREMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HEZZ-NF=ZA=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt & TET FAT

Revenue U 25 7 203,015 225,579
Cost of sales $HE KA (201,188) (222,759)
Gross profit EF 1,827 2,820
Other income H AUz A 8 15,921 137
Administrative and other operating TEEEAmLEERAS

expenses (40,589) (30,624)
Loss from operations RERBER (22,841) (27,667)
Finance costs A& AR 10 (6,266) (1,430)
Loss before tax A8 (29,107) (29,097)
Income tax credit Fris s % 1 - 3,907
Loss and total comprehensive income AQT#EEABIEER

for the year attributable to owners of BERZHUSHEEE

the Company 12 (29,107) (25,190)

HK$ HK$
BT BT

Loss per share BREE

— Basic — ®EK 16(a) 7.3 centsll 6.3 centsfll

— Diluted — B8 16(b) N/AT & H N/AA i@ F

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F iR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B R &R

At 31 March 2019
RZZE-—NE=A=+—H

2019 2018
=F-NF —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment PIEE - BN RE 17 63,394 64,166
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 18 6,431 4,212
Trade and retention receivables B 5 I G IE K EBURE £ 19 15,745 52,000
Contract assets ENEE 20 150,009 —
Gross amounts due from customers JEWEF & #) T2 718 %8
for contract work 20 - 84,103
Prepayments, deposits and ERNHRE Ze Rk
other receivables E e IR 3R 9,677 10,320
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIEITER 21 10,214 10,138
Bank and cash balances RITNIR & & 21 71,800 12,590
263,876 173,363
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and retention payables B ZEMNFIEREMNRES 22 89,747 45,088
Contract liabilities SHAE 20 531 —
Gross amounts due to customers BB A4 T2 HIB A%
for contract work 20 - 2,225
Accruals and other payables FEFTE R & E b BT 5B 23 11,445 6,930
Finance lease payables B & M S T ROR 24 15,924 26,397
Bank borrowings RITHEK 25 27,398 30,007
145,045 110,647
Net current assets RBEERE 118,831 62,716
Total assets less current BEERREBARE
liabilities 182,225 126,882

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBRR &
At 31 March 2019
RZE—-—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET—)\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E T T T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Finance lease payables Bh & & TR 24 812 1,868
Other borrowing, unsecured Hb g0 - M 26 90,006 —
90,818 1,868
NET ASSETS EEEE 91,407 125,014
Capital and reserves BXRGEE
Share capital Ji% < 28 4,000 4,000
Reserves & 31 87,407 121,014
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 91,407 125,014

REZEN_ZT-NAFARNAZTN\BHEL
HUTEFRERREE:

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019 and signed
on its behalf by:

Chen Rongsheng Guan Jingdong

P At 22 R
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HNITESE

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F iR 75
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TmERERBEK
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=T—BLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROEBAE AR
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium profits equity
BAx KGHEE BEFN #ZLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET
(note 28)  (note 31(b)
(Ff5x28) (P 5E31(b)
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFMNA—H 4,000 84,403 61,801 150,204
Loss and total comprehensive income FREE KR 2EUK A% &
and changes in equity for the year Bz 2 - — (25,190 (25,190
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZZ—-N\F=ZA=+—-HRK
“E-\FWMA—AH 4,000 84,403 36,611 125,014
Impact on initial application of BRERABEBMBEREEL
HKFRS 9 FORT B - - (4,500) (4,500)
Loss and total comprehensive income FREEN 2HNFEEHE
for the year - - (29,107) (29,107)
Changes in equity for the year FAEZZH - - (33,607) (33,607)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=ZA=+—H 4,000 84,403 3,004 91,407

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

= A ==
mEBRERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE-_ZT-NF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRELRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BrEiETE 1B (29,107) (29,097)
Adjustments for: BRUTSEELRAE:
Depreciation wE 12 7,737 8,305
Finance costs BE AR 10 6,778 1,991
Written off of contract assets MEENEE 12 2,998 -
Imputed interest income HERMBWA 8 (14,610) -
Interest income A B A 8 (1,309) 67
Gain on disposals of property, plant and  HEWE - HE R R ER
equipment, net U #5558 12 (11) (63)
Operating loss before working capital EEERE ALY
changes =l (27,524) (18,925)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEOEM,BD (2,219) 753
Increase in trade and retention 2 5 M WA I E UK
receivables R [E € 18 0 (1,431) (2,758)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets/ ~ AKEE /TEWREFAY
gross amounts due from customers TRIERBEOEM,
for contract work D (37,782) 1,940
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and B FIE - e R EfM
other receivables JE WK TE R A 643 5,678
Increase in trade and retention payables & 5 & 208 K JE
4% I 44,659 16,435
Increase/(decrease) in contract &,/ Ef %:}5 & fz’]
liabilities/gross amounts due to BRBE /T
customers for contract work ,%'% %E #m,/ CRd) 370 (832)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and EETER R HEME 171‘
other payables FEEMm/ R D) 4,515 (4,599)
Cash used in operations KEMARE (18,769) (2,402)
Interest paid BfFIB (1,059) (995)
Finance lease charges paid ENRENEER (1,103) (996)
Net cash used in operating activities EEEHMARS FE (20,931) (4,393)

B EBEZER AR D E 2018/19 F R 77



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REHETRER
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZEDHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 H S 1,309 61
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BBERR
equipment 17 (7,034) (2,959)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME EHERZHE
plant and equipment Fri§ %18 80 7,133
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BEEFBRITERCEM,
deposits W (76) 2,298
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits  REHEREHEZH
with original maturity of more than three = {& A z # I # & £
months when acquired TR - 2,000
Net cash (used in)/from REE® (A5
investing activities Re %8 (5,721) 8,633
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEFDHRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings raised EERTER 33(b) 81,611 175,518
Other borrowing raised EEHMER 33(b) 100,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER 33(b) (86,648) (172,048)
Repayment of finance lease payables EBEMERERMNZE 33(b) (11,529) (12,611)
Net cash from/(used in) MEEZBME/(FTA)
financing activities ReFHE 83,434 (9,141)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B2 RELZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS gm,/ (ML) 28 56,782 (5,001)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRERREEEY
beginning of year 12,590 17,591
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXRBRERIREEHEY 69,372 12,590
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBAEFEMIIT
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances BTN &% 21 71,800 12,590
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 25 (2,428) -
69,372 12,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HEZZ-NF=ZA=+—HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
P. O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Unit 01, 82/F., International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March
2016 (the “Listing Date”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of foundation services
and leasing of machinery in Hong Kong.

With reference to the joint announcement made by the
Company and Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”)
on 7 May 2018 (the “Joint Announcement 17), the Company
has been notified by New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace
Gain”) that after trading hours on 27 April 2018, Blessing
Well (as the purchaser), New Grace Gain (as the vendor) and
its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris,
Mr. Yue Suen Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert (as the
guarantors), entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which
New Grace Gain agreed to sell and Blessing Well agreed to
purchase 300,000,000 shares of the Company, representing
75% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of
the Joint Announcement 1, for a total cash consideration of
HK$596,250,000 (the “Event of the Change of Substantial
Shareholders”). Completion of the abovementioned transaction
took place on 30 April 2018. Details of which are set out in
the Joint Announcement 1.

As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial
Shareholders, Blessing Well has become the controlling and
substantial shareholder of the Company since 30 April 2018
while New Grace Gain, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Yue
Suen Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert ceased to be the
controlling and substantial shareholders of the Company on
30 April 2018.

—REHR

KRARIRZZE—RAF+tAZ+=ZHR
BHEHESRAREEREFSEMK
N RERAR o EFEM P EE MU
&P, O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands - £ X Z& £ 2
REABNENTAERIRRIESE
H82E01E « AREIRHBE T —F
—AT+NB(LETHBDERABBESE
RBPEABRAR([HERET)) EREM o
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TEXBRERBRMMERE MK
WmEE -

ZRAARAEHBELEBRAA
(BEIRZZE-—NFHRAELHED
MEte R E(BEeEAE)  KAaEE
New Grace Gain Limited ([New Grace
Ganh&E R RZE—N\FWNA =+
tARSGKERE BEWERER)
New Grace Gain fEAE /) R E &K
ERBBALBHLEE  RERLE
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GanAEHEREEREBEARR
300,000,000/ & 7 (48 & A 2 Al 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

— HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

— HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation
to classification of financial assets and measurement
of credit losses, and impacted by HKFRS 15 in relation
to the presentation of contract assets and contract
liabilities. Details of the change in accounting policies
are disclosed in 3(a)(i) and 3(a)(i) for HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 respectively. Under the transition methods
chosen, the Group recognises cumulative effect of the
initial application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018, comparative information is not restated.

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

3. RAMTREEITES
B 3% ¥R 5 2 A
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- ERMBHREENFORE
ATA

- EERMBHREEAFEI5R
KEEF &4 891k &

R ER B30 R A AN 2 A R (4]
REBEERFHETER SRR

AEBMNEMEENEREEE
B ECXEBUBRELERE
CRFTHE MENEEREY
BENRINCETEEMEREE
BIZE155RFT R 2 - BT B
WEEANBEIRRB BT ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

(continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 April 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening equity
at 1 April 2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits at 1 April
2018.

3. IMMETREETES
B %5 R 5 2 B (48

A FEHEFFTRLEREE

B RsEREER(8)

() BEEUEHETEAE
oL T HE
AEBBEBERTHR
—E-N\FNA—HEFHE
MIBBEHERSEHNG
W EAIFEON - REMY
BRERNIH Y ERER
BUR-—ZE—N\FEmNA—A
ER W IE S B RE o AL -
AR ER S EERES
e R B30 RE

TRBLBREFTEHH
HELRNBSREUN T —
NEMA— BRI RE & A

WEE -

HK$'000
FAT
Retained profits REBEFR
Recognition of additional expected HTHIBEREREINEH
credit losses on: EEEE:
— Trade and retention receivables — B 5 EWIE R ERR
® (154)
— contract assets — GHNEE (4,346)
Decrease in retained profits at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FWMA—H
REB & TR D (4,500)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i)

HKFRS 9 Financial

instruments

(continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

a.

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL).
These supersede HKAS 39’s categories
of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets measured at FVTPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS
9 is based on the business model under
which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Under HKFRS 9, the classification for all the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost remain the same.
The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 April 2018 have not been impacted by
the initial application of HKFRS 9.

3. IMMETREETES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
() HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
(continued)

b.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the “expected
credit loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under
the “incurred loss” accounting model in
HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS
15 (see note 3(a)(ii);

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see
note 4(s).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. R ITIREEETESR

(CONTINUED) Bt i i &5 B (48
(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED A R REETEE

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

B 75 i & £ B (&)

() HKFRS 9 Financial instruments () ERMBHEERE
(continued) OREMTHA(E)
b. Credit losses (continued) b. FEEBHEE)
The following table reconciles the closing TRARBEES S
loss allowance determined in accordance AEREIRE TR
with HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018 with E-NF=ZA=1+—
the opening loss allowance determined in B Y HA R 5 18 7 1 £
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 April RIERETEHREE
2018. AIFEOREER_Z
—N\FMNA—BHH
VE B RS R
HK$'000
T T
Loss allowance at 31 March 2018 BIEE B 25 ER FE 395 1N
under HKAS 39 - N\F=ZA=1+—88
EEEE -
Additional credit loss recognised at RTINEBER-_ZT—-N\FMOA
1 April 2018 on: —HERNBEIMEEEIE:
— Trade and retention receivables — BIHRBGIA R ERIRE S 154
— Contract assets recognised on — RMB B R EER
adoption of HKFRS 15 FISREHRNENEE 4,346
Loss allowance at 1 April 2018 under 1R 1E & 7 81 7 3k & 2 BI| 5595%
HKFRS 9 RZZE-N\FMOA—HH
BiERE 4,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts

with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from

contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1 April 2018. Therefore, comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As
allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the
new requirements only to contracts that were not

completed before 1 April 2018.

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on

retained profits as at 1 April 2018.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

3. IMMETREETES

B 3% ¥k

4 S EU(QE

H ==/, m

A BRI REETEL
175 ¥R & 22 BN (48D

(ii)

EEMBHEEAE
15 FF 41k 25
BB W% & AR 1558
BRI R R EREF AL
MORANZEER - &
76 B 75 i & 2 Rl 1557 B
REB T ERF18HR U
m(RRERHEEmME
HRBEEN W) REB
B ERBENREESD
(REEEZEANNET
&) o

BB W% & AR E155%
TRal NFRINE 1 K E B W
BATE EESRMHHRE
ERETHREPANME
s MREREMNNKE
B 28 HARTHEE
Mo

AEEEERERRNT
BBRENERCERER
ERNRNTER-F—
NEMA—BEER S
BREVIEE - Hit > WHEE
S E MR BBRIEE
BT ERIENTE REFE
AR 8|S -
BB W% & AR E155%
ZEFA T AKEEHE
- N\FMA-HZAR
SERZAKRBIRE -

BEZEBHREER
FRE T \FMOA—
e REEA L EEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies are set out
below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from construction
contracts was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods had
passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point in time or over
time. HKFRS 15 identifies the following three
situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A.  When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

B.  When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced;
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

C. When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations,
then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the transfer
of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group
recognises revenue from construction
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

b.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right
to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before receiving the
consideration or being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified
as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is
contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer, either a
net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

b.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (continued)

Previously, contract balances relating to
construction contracts in progress were
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “gross amounts due
from customers for contract work” or “gross
amounts due to customers for contract
work” respectively. Receivables for which the
Group’s entitlement to the consideration was
conditional on achieving certain milestones or
satisfactory completion of the retention period
were presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “retention receivables”
under “trade and retention receivables”.

To reflect these changes in presentation, the
Group has made the following adjustments at
1 April 2018, as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15:

(i) “Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work” amounting to
approximately HK$84,103,000 is now
included under contract assets;

(i)  “Gross amounts due to customers
for contract work” amounting to
approximately HK$1,879,000 and
approximately HK$346,000 are now
included under contract assets and
contract liabilities respectively; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. AT REEIIETE
B % 3k &5 2 B (48
A FERFEI MEIEFTEE
B RsEREER(8)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts (i) BB EHEER
with customers (continued) FREL LAWK 2
(&
b. Presentation of contract assets and b. AHNEBEEREBENZE
liabilities (continued) HI(#E

(i)  “Retention receivables” under “Trade
and retention receivables” amounting
to approximately HK$37,501,000 and
approximately HK$185,000 are now
included under contract assets and
contract liabilities respectively.

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2018 as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018

The following tables summarise the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018, by
comparing the amounts reported under
HKFRS 15 in these consolidated financial
statements with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised
under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 if those
superseded standards had continued to
apply to 2018 instead of HKFRS 15. These
tables show only those line items impacted
by the adoption of HKFRS 15:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBEHRMHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE_ZT-NF=ZA=+—RHLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. R ITIREEETESR

(CONTINUED) B 7 3R & 28I (4§)
(A) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED (A) FEF ??ﬁ 51 & \§{;n—f§7;§
HKFRSs (CONTINUED) SR (E)
(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts (i) EBMKHZEER
with customers (continued) %l?%)ﬁ. EFE&# Wz
me
c. Disclosure of the estimated impact on the c. RZE—NFHNA-—
amounts reported in respect of the year A ?5"& MEBE KK
ended 31 March 2018 as a result of the & 2 ,E"J 1558 ¥ B
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 EZ-_Z2-N\HF=R=
(continued) +—HLEFEIHS
AN EENEE
(48)
Difference:
Amounts Estimated
reported in  Hypothetical impact of
accordance amounts adoption of
with under HKASs HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 18 and 11 on 2018
BB EER EZE B4
RIEEE F18HREE BTEHNBRS
B iR E R EErER ERIE15HK
E15MAIRE FENWETH —B— A$m
8 RiEsE EHE2
(A) (B) (A) - (B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHET
Line items in the consolidated R=F—NF=A=+
statement of financial —HNGEA B TR
position as at 31 March RPERHBBHE
2018 impacted by the BEZREISRMR
adoption of HKFRS 15: HEWER:
Trade and retention receivables & 5 & 4 7018 K & U 17
&4 14,314 52,000 (37,686)
Contract assets BHEE 119,725 - 119,725
Gross amounts due from EREFAHTIENT
customers for contract work ~ #8%8 - 84,103 (84,103)
Total current assets RHEEME 171,299 173,363 (2,064)
Contract liabilities aHEaE 161 - 161
Gross amounts due to ENEFAHTIRHE
customers for contract work ~ #2%8 - 2,225 (2,225)
Total current liabilities nEEEAE 108,583 110,647 (2,064)
Net current assets RBEEFE 62,716 62,716 -
Net assets BEERHE 125,014 125,014 -
Reserves ik 121,014 121,014 -
Total equity EREE 125,014 125,014 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.

(CONTINUED)

(B)
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN

R4
m

AHET R BRI &R

B 3% ¥ 5 2RI (4F)

ISSUE (B)

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2018. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax & (B FHERERESR
BRRAEREENT BT
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 & E VKRS &N T —HFE

Treatments

Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest
in Associates and Joint Ventures

BERMBR

ERAIE16KEE

R tHBPCFRNE

BRI E85% (BT A) R Bt &

RAIRABLEMRER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment

of what the impact of these amendments

and new

standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of

the expected impacts are discussed below.

While the

assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report for the six months ending 30 September
2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy

elections, including the transition options,

until the

standards are initially applied in that interim financial

report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or finance leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need
to recognise and measure a liability at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation
on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or
loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted
as a result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in note 36, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to approximately HK$4,249,000 as
at 31 March 2019. These leases are expected to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts
will be adjusted for the effects of discounting and the
transition reliefs available to the Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out
how to apply that standard when there is uncertainty
about income tax treatments. Entities are required to
determine whether uncertain tax treatments should
be assessed separately or as a group depending on
which approach will better predict the resolution of the
uncertainties. Entities will have to assess whether it is
probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. If yes, the accounting treatment will be
consistent with the entity’s income tax filings. If not,
however, entities are required to account for the effects
of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome
or expected value method depending on which method
is expected to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements
until a more detailed assessment has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its

judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(A)

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

4.

EXRERTHE

It

2l o

A MBMRIIEE R RAE R

MR 6 B8 IS i R RO B S 3R
REBEERETHEBREH G THE
EEERNEAASESHRRNBRE
R HI BT o % R EK AR E A HI B =X
BRERN  IBREGEFFHEER
BMwRBE A H IS WL EEF -

MENEFEEMBRRFERANEKX
SETBREFHMT -

(A)

meiRE
ZEFAPBBRRBEARTR
HifBAREZE=A=+—HHK
MBHR - WBRRAAEEE
BEHIENER - EAEEEB
S2EZBERMARE B D HHE
RREEEZE BB RGN
BREBRNIZEERBNRFNR
WA HZER -  EAKERE
MREN B T HEEN IR ERHIAE
(AHEROBRAEEAZENG
) IRTAKEHZELRSR
e

SR A EEIEE  AREEEE
BERZRUARBEMESFE
MEBERRE BENZHERA
ERBEABITEUEROEREE
NETEWERE -

MEBAREHEEREERE TAS
EEgAREGa AR WS #E
RIFEETHBEAEAR -

SEARAENRZS « EERRR
ERBMHTAHE - RIERS
RHUBEBRTAEBEEELDR
A BAIKRERERTTUY
o MARE  WEBARMES
BOREIEHEE - LHERFER
SERMOBE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

B)

©)

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each

entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for

administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(C) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset,
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

Furniture and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

(D) LEASES

The Group as lessee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4, BEREEBER(E)

(CONTINUED)
(D) LEASES (CONTINUED) D) HEHE)
The Group as lessee (continued) AEBEFEBEBAGE)
(i)  Finance leases (i) WMEHEE
Leases that substantially transfer to the Group BEHRBEOMERR R
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets B AHBoEE TAREE
are accounted for as finance leases. At the MEEARARENRE -
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease REBRFAGE  BEEE
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the EHEEERHERBR
leased asset and the present value of the minimum ErENATERESEHEE
lease payments, each determined at the inception NHRBREMEFHRESE
of the lease. BAEER -
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included LHANBEEEBERGS
in the consolidated statement of financial position B RARIERERE
as finance lease payable. Lease payments are FERTEIE - HERN R B
apportioned between the finance charge and the EEARHMAREEAEN
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance lease WZEELDER - s &M
charge is allocated to each period during the lease EERARNHEBASEHES
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of - M EEEHRER
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. BREEFBHBEREE o
Assets under finance leases are depreciated the MEHEEEKREBRE
same as owned assets. ERRHTRATUITE -
The Group as lessor AEBEAHEAA
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees BEREBENMERR RE I
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are BmAREEH THREANHEEA
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from RRgEEE  KEHENHES
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis WA REEEBRNLEZETA
over the term of the relevant lease. R o
(E) INVENTORIES E =FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(F)

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(s) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

Policy prior to 1 April 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances were
recorded for construction contracts at the net amount
of costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings. These net balances were
presented as the “gross amount due from customers for
contract work” (as an asset) or the “gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability). These
balances have been reclassified as on 1 April 2018 as
shown in note 3(a)ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(G) CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to work
on construction assets under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction activities create
or enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.
The directors consider that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under
HKFRS 15.

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers
for construction works based on achieving a series
of performance-related milestones. When a particular
milestone is reached the customer is sent a relevant
statement of work signed by a third party assessor and
an invoice for the related milestone payment. The Group
will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the milestone
payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
cost-to-cost method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference. There is not considered to be a
significant financing component in construction contracts
with customers as the period between the recognition of
revenue under the cost-to-cost method and the milestone
payment is always less than one year.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties for
late completion are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised.

Policy prior to 1 April 2018

Revenue from contract revenue contracts was recognised
on a similar basis in the comparative period under HKAS
1.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(H) RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(K) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

() Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

(i) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

L

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Equity instruments
An equity instruments in any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(g) above.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Policy prior to 1 April 2018

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the contract activity as
detailed in note 4(g) above.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(N)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave is
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme and
issues equity-settled share-based payments to eligible
employees (including directors). Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for
the year. Taxable profits differ from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

4, EXE

Q) TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profits nor the
accounting profits.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Q) TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an
expense through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables
and contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Significant increase in credit

(continued)
— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

risks

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Significant increase in credit

(continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

risks

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

4, BEREEBER(E)

(S)

AN

TREERAHEERME
(%)
FERREELHAE

330

i

MPBREREGOME  NEBEK
AR RH AYE —J ) B IR AR
AR T ERERF G ETER
R zBH BN EFHEERR
BYBEREAEDESESER
ZLETE  ARBEERIEEED
AEHRBRHOES

AEBEEHERANEEEER
RELBELINAZEERKRR -
WREE R RIELER] - femE
RB B 1R 7E 8L 910 SRR 18 B Al o
EEERRBEEM -

EHNNESR
AEBRBUATERRAILE
ERREEBNMEBRENS
- REASBELBRIATAIN
MR — IR R A 9 R U RE — AR
R Y

- XREZHFERMHRFE X

— AWMELHEREINIK
REOER KR - EHEAN
KAgE B AN (BREARE
B)2RER(TEEAE
B A EER R

THwEXDW AEERAEE S
REESIEBE0BRR - BIE%
EEX BRIEASEEEEERE
BEMNENSHARERNELNEZE
EFAEA - BERI °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKAS
17 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, and does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 April 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at FVTPL)
are impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows of the (group
of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For trade and retention receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(S)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Policy prior to 1 April 2018 (continued)

Only for trade and retention receivables, the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if
the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the allowance
account for trade and retention receivables) through profit
or loss. However, the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost of the
financial asset would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(U) EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations which are dealt with below).

(@ Revenue recognition of construction contracts
relating to accounting for variation orders
The Group makes claims for additional work performed,
which may arise either under specific circumstances
provided for under the contracts, or due to variations
made to the contract specifications by customers. Where
the amounts of such claims have not been formally
agreed at the end of the reporting period, the amount
recoverable as estimated by management is included
in the contract value in determining the estimated
recoverable amount.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(s), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(c)

Revenue and profit
construction contracts
As disclosed in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recognition on a construction
contract is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contracts,
as well as the work done to date. The management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and provision for claims,
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations provided
by contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budgets accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
When the final cost incurred by the Group is different
from the amounts initially budgeted, such differences
will impact revenue and the profit or loss recognised
on the contracts. The provision for claims is determined
on the basis of the delay in the number of workdays
of the completion of the construction works which is
highly subjective and is subject to negotiation with the
customers. Management conducts periodic review of the
provision amount.

recognition of

Significant judgment is required in estimating the contract
revenue, contract costs, variation works and provision
for claims which have an impact on the percentage of
completion of contracts and profit or loss recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charges where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$63,394,000
(2018: approximately HK$64,166,000).

Impairment of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets (2018: gross
amounts due from customers for contract
work)

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the
management of the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that trade and retention receivables and gross amounts
due from customers for contract work are impaired. The
provision policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of trade and retention
receivables and gross amounts due from customers for
contract work, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of trade
and retention receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work was approximately
HK$136,103,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$6,053,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of trade and retention

(f)

receivables and contract assets (2018: gross
amounts due from customers for contract

work) (continued)

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade and retention
receivables and contract assets based on the credit risk
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets.
The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model
is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances,
a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets is approximately
HK$165,754,000 (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$4,500,000).

Provision for claims on construction works
When accounting for provision for claims on construction
works and other items, the Group has taken internal and
external advice in considering known claims and actions
made by or against the Group. It carefully assesses the
likelihood of success of a claim or action. Appropriate
provisions are made for claims or actions against the
Group on the basis of likely outcome, but no provisions
are made for those which in the view of management are
unlikely to succeed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

3.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Provision for claims on construction works
(continued)

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Group has been negotiating the final settlement
amount of a completed contract with a customer. The
customer indicated that it is seeking to deduct from
the final settlement amount the sum of approximately
HK$23,450,000 for liquidated damages arising from
delays in completion of the contract (the “LD”). Up to
the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the negotiation with the customer is still in progress.
Significant judgement was required in determining the
possible outcomes of the negotiation with the customer
and whether it is necessary to recognise any amount in
respect of the LD. The directors are of the opinion that
the negotiation with the customer is still in progress and
based on the opinion of an independent professional
consultant, believe that such LD is unlikely to succeed
and accordingly, the Group has not recognised any
amounts in respect of the LD in the consolidated financial
statements.

In making management’s judgment, the Group assessed
the Group’s liability and obligations under the terms of
subcontracting agreement, supporting evidence of work
done and the basis of charge of related works. Provision
on possible obligations, if appropriate, are made based
on management’s best estimates and judgements. As at
31 March 2019 and 2018, no provision for claims was
made.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(A)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(orimarily trade receivables and contract assets) and
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The carrying amount of trade receivables, contract
assets, deposits and other receivables and bank
balances included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated
its finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s
credit risk grading to categories exposures according to
their degree of risk of default. The finance team uses
publicly available financial information and the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major
debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit rating of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:
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Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
risk since initial \recognition \ )
* Bk BB R RR%(E 8RRk AR PHEREEEE-REBEEE
AR
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit Lifetime ECL credit impaired
impaired
EX BERAEECHBEEERE 2HEREEFE-CHBREE
AR
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is  Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i 8H BERABBARNBREN R NAE  FIAWRME

%] f 4 B % Ui 0] 5R08 A A] BE

For deposits and other receivables, the directors make
periodic collectively assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
and deposits. No ECL of deposits and other receivables
was recognised under 12m ECL model during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

e R EMEWHRIENS @ &
= B E M R WK IE MR & W)
AJ W [a] 14 HE 1T SR B8 R 1 K (B Bl 5F
H-REBEE-_ZT-NFR_FT—
NE=ZA=+—HILFE  HE
RiF12(E AEHEEBEEARE
RLe M EAE YR 2 BB
EEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bt 7% /E B& & ¥E (4&)

(B) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) B) EERRE(E)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade and AEBIZEEN 2 BREHEES
retention receivables and contract assets at an amount BB E=EIEBFIAERE
equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical credit WRERAREXEE 2 BB
loss experience does not indicate significantly different - BRAEBZATEERE
loss patterns for different debtors, the loss allowance KW EBRTREFAZEBIE
based on past due status is not further distinguished BABEAEZER  EWEE—
between the Group’s different debtors. FEROBFEETERBEBHEAERE
AR 2 B R -
The following table provides information about the TEREHEEASEER-_Z—N
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and F=ZA=+—HREFHEWFEAE
retention receivables and contract assets as at 31 March FEWBRESAREGHNEENA
2019: BREERRLEHEEEREZ
B
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIES IR =R IREAE BiERE
% HK$ HK$
B BT
Trade receivables ESEWME
0-30 days 0% 30H — 10,747 —
31-60 days 31260H — 4,998 —
15,745 —
Contract assets EHEE
Current (not past due) B ER (5K %0 A7) 3.00 150,009 4,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_Z-NF=A=+—-BILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(B) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables and contract assets during the year are

Bt 15 ol B E 2 (4R)

B)

EERR(E)
FR - BHESBRRARAK
EEZBRABBEZZHMT:

as follows:
HK$’000
FET
At 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 RIBEEE G LR FE395%
R=B—\F=A=+— ~
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRAEREBUBERE /E'J
(note 3(a)(i)(b)) and at 31 March 2019 FONR Y & (M E?S(a)(o(b))&
RZE-NE=ZR=+— 4,500

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past nine years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

(C) LIQUIDITY RISK
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

T B B N B
BRSBEE - ZEL RO
B AR R
BRI - AR R R
& W IaﬁnJrgHﬁHﬁFEj%/g#
R2EEMER -

//|L@J§ﬂi

REBHEE ﬁmﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%&
EHORBESTE - UERE
HEFEEUENEHERREERD
EeTENRSHE -

TRIRAEBABER S REH
ABRABHERERE(BERSE
MR =T ESE (I RFE N R) %
HEMRNIRITHREFEHHNE
BESINSES LRSS E’J
RPRAHMAENRBRENFES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

6.

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bf 7% /&l b& B 38 (48)
LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) ©C nEBEDERGE)
Specifically, for bank and other borrowings and HEBmME  HResREREER
finance lease payables which contain a repayment on ERMABBIERATEIRITEED
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s BITENRITREMEREHHE
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow MERNRE  ZOMKRERA
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be AN ROEFEHEYRRER
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke L BV A TR EK
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate BVBF 32 S0 B0 M AR FRE R o Ho i Bl
effect. The maturity analysis for other finance lease EHRERMNREND BB RSN
payables is prepared based on the scheduled repayment TR TEEERBHRR -
dates.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities REBSRABERAHRMER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as EMEMNIBABRAI>TWOT
follows:
On Within Between Between
demand 1 year 1to2years 2to5 years Total
BRER 1£R 1E2f 2E58 o
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET TERT TERT
At 31 March 2019 RZB-h#F
=ZB=+-H
Financial liabilities subject to 3 R & EX
a repayment on demand EERRH
clause SREE
Bank borrowings BTG 27,398 - - - 27,398
Finance lease payables BMEBERM
A 14,312 = = = 14,312
Financial liabilities not BAZRARE
subject to a repayment on  RIEBHEFKH
demand clause 2REE
Trade and retention payables & 5 & 28 &
ENRES = 87,895 1,852 - 89,747
Accruals and other payables BB & E it
JE 1t 7B 5,033 6,412 = = 11,445
Finance lease payables BERERM
TIE = 1,656 821 = 2,477
Other borrowing, unsecured ~— E A E R -
4 35K 47 = = 100,000 = 100,000

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bfigm P& E IR (48)

LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) ©C nEBEDERGE)
On Within Between Between
demand 1year 11to2years 21to5 years Total
REX 1R 1225 2E5% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT FTHEL TEL THT
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
—A=+—H
Financial liabilities subject to 3 R R & ER
a repayment on demand EERRH
clause SREE
Bank borrowings RITER 30,007 - - - 30,007
Finance lease payables BEREEMS
B 25,234 - - - 25,234
Financial liabilities not BAZMRERE
subject to a repayment on  REFHEHRH
demand clause SREE
Trade and retention payables & 5 & 28 &
ENRES - 43,015 2,073 - 45,088
Accruals and other payables Bt B & E it
FERRE - 6,930 - - 6,930
Finance lease payables BERERERM
HIE - 1,226 1,095 814 3,135

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowings and finance lease payables with
a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts are greater than the amounts disclosed
in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings and finance lease payables will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates.

R E R 17 E TR E B B R
AHFE R BREEGRKORT
ARk EHE RN RIAELN
BRI - BEFKEBREEK
RAKNERAEOF B -
it BEFKESR EXAEA
MR R A 1R B 5K B ] 86
TR EAFOR o R RAKE
W ARR - EERA/RITH
KAlGETTE B B Z RN E
R BREME ARARITERK
BEHERMNFAKIRREEE
BEMEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6.

Bt 35 B By B 1 (4R)

(C) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) ©C mHELRAERGE)
Within Between Between
1year 1to2vyears 2tob5 years Total
1R 12828 2855 Foe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FTEL FTEL TEL
At 31 March 2019 R-E-h&
=A=+-H
Bank borrowings BITIEK 25,050 - - 25,050
Finance lease payables BMEMEEMHE 8,900 6,241 399 15,540
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F
=A=+-H
Bank borrowings BITER 30,100 - - 30,100
Finance lease payables REMERMTE 11,336 8,900 6,640 26,876
(D) INTEREST RATE RISK D) A== bz

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s finance lease payables
of approximately HK$11,661,000 (2018: approximately
HK$17,702,000) bear interests at fixed interest rate and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, trust receipt loans, bank
loans, factoring loans, bank overdrafts and the remaining
finance lease payables and therefore bear interests at
variable rates varied with the then prevailing market

condition.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, if interest rates at that
date had been 50 basis points lower or higher with
all other variables held constant, there would be no
significant change to the loss after tax for the year.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bt 7% /E B& & ¥E (4&)

(E) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL E) RmEFHRN2pTHE
INSTRUMENTS AT THE END OF THE =Rl

REPORTING PERIOD

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBx FAT
Financial assets: EeRMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost LHEIER AT R 2 &R
BE 106,285 —
Loans and receivables (including cash & 7k & & Us 7018 (£ 4%
and cash equivalents) REeRBELZEEY) - 75,889
Financial liabilities: eREaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1% # $5 B 7K 51| BR 19
TREE 235,332 110,290
(F) FAIR VALUES (F) ~¥1E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets rEETREERTRABENER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated AUBAR KRR ESEE
statement of financial position approximate their ZENRAFEES -
respective fair values.
7. REVENUE 7. Ur32%
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBHKREITHT:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE&x FAT
Recognised over time under HKFRS 1R #& & /& B 1§ 3R &5 2 Bl 551558
15 NE—BHBRER
Provision of foundation services e At i B R 7% 202,806 225,579
Revenue from other sources KB HMKIRE 22Uz
Leasing of machinery e E 209 -
203,015 225,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. Wz (48)
As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of revenue RZZE—NAF=ZA=1+—H8  BEFR
expected to be recognised in the future related to performance 7% TR HE 5RO ER A 3R & B HA R SE K (3BT
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the DAREK)BHETEENBNK=EHE
reporting date is approximately HK$247,624,000. The Group will 49 /247,624,000 JT ° AN B R 5K
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the work e R TR B SR T 5T U s (FEET A AR 2R
is completed which is expected to occur over the next 12 to 24 12E24 AAEAE) o WA ERNE
months. This analysis is solely for compliance with HKFRS 15 STEBV B RS ERE155REE N 2 B
disclosure requirement in respect of transaction price allocated ERBEHNETNRFIERNIFEER
to the remaining performance obligations. TE ©
8. it A
OTHER INCOME
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FH& T
Imputed interest income HE M B A 14,610 —
Interest income BB A 1,309 61
Others Hity 2 76
15,921 137
SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. DEEH

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

BEDHER
AEERIEEERREENENS
A 74 o T 40 P 10 PO 30 9 5 T LB
S AAHEH AR RTHERE
g o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. FEEH(E)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BEDHER(E)
(CONTINUED)

The Board of Directors considers that the Group manages its EEERAE ASEEZNEEEEE
businesses by divisions, which are organised into business % - Wik E IR R A K EBEA -
units based on their services provided, and has the reportable ATEREEDEOT:

operating segments as follows:

()  Foundation — provision of foundation services () HE — BHERS
(i)  Leasing — leasing of machinery (i) HE — #WHEE
The reportable segments are identified in a manner consistent BYEWMrB e ERAER SR
with the way in which information is reported internally to the THEBABRHEATRSEER A
Group’s senior executive management for the purposes of EBRDBE R ERERG) 2 HE—
resource allocation and performance assessment. o

Foundation Leasing Total

it & HE &t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“®-7F —T—)\F “F-NF -T-\F “FB-AF —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHLT  FAx  TER  FAx  TER AR

Reportable segment revenue ETE2®/DBME 202,806 225,579 209 - 203,015 225,579
Reportable segment results ETE/ROBEE (14,465) (13,669) (2,228) (882) (16,693) (14,551)
Central administrative expenses and R 17 B F 2 I

directors’ emoluments ExMe (12,414) (14,546)
Loss before tax BR AT 85 1R (29,107) (29,097)

Reportable segment results include: 7872 # 7 18 £ 4&

ZF-

Interest income B A 78 61 = - 78 61

Finance costs & R 1,882 1,946 280 38 2,162 1,984

Depreciation wE 5,915 7,552 1,822 753 7,737 8,305

Additions to property, plant and NEWE KER

equipment B 7,034 16,180 = 7,000 7,034 23,180

Written off of contract assets WMEEHNEE 2,998 - - - 2,998 -
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external LR E®M B Bl EEREN
customers. HEP -
Segment results represent loss attributable to the segment DHEEERARDEEERA - PRITH
without allocation of corporate income, central administrative AXNEEMEAT 2D BRGEIE -

expenses and directors’ emoluments.

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F iR

133



134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2EEH(E)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DHEEERBE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTEHINAEBEREEDREI D2 &
by operating segments: ENBERND:
2019 2018
—E-nEF 2N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAETT
SEGMENT ASSETS STHEE
Foundation H, A 263,248 226,841
Leasing HE 9,116 10,588
Total segment assets DEEEAG 272,364 237,429
Unallocated assets KB EE 55,915 100
Consolidated assets LEBE 328,279 237,529
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SHEAaE
Foundation b B 137,083 106,386
Leasing HE 3,883 6,055
Total segment liabilities SDEAEAES 140,966 112,441
Unallocated liabilities SEEBEE 95,906 74
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 236,872 112,515

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources to segment:

(i) All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
the unallocated assets; and

(i) All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than those unallocated liabilities which are centrally
managed by the Group’s management.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s operations are not subject to significant seasonal
factors.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. FHEEN(E)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION = &
All non-current assets as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 and RZE-NFRZZE—N\F=ZA=+—
the Group’s revenue from external customers during the years ANFERBEEARBE_S—
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are located in and generated NER_ZE—NFZA=Z+—HBILFE
from Hong Kong. AEBEKRBINIFPOM AT KR
REBRE -
REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFPkS
The Group’s customer base for whom transactions have HE-ZE-hER-ZT—)/\F=ZA=+
exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years ended 31 March —HAILFE  EBEXZEEEBE10%A
2019 and 2018 is set out as below: FRENEFPBEHIINT
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiE&x FAT
Foundation b B
Customer 1 ==l 45,279 N/AT 3 A~
Customer 2 B2 22,698 N/AT iE 3
Customer 3 %F3 22,01 28,914
Customer 4 BP4 N/AF & 3~ 96,809
Customer 5 ®F5 N/AT i 3 * 23,008
Amount represented less than 10% of the revenue during the year. * LREBEFEHRZE D N10% °
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. Bt & B A
2019 2018
—E—NEF —EN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Finance lease charges REHEEA 1,103 996
Interest on bank borrowings |ATIE AR 1,059 995
Imputed interest expenses HE M B X 4,616 —
6,778 1,991
Less: Amounts attributable to contract WA IREELHESE
works (512) (561)
6,266 1,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FIEHIKER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Deferred tax (note 27) iR E R 1B (P 5E27) = 3,907

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated profit for the year ended
31 March 2019.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profits for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

BHE_ZT-NF=ZA=t—RHLFE"
FRMERZRMAEENA16.6% (ZF
—/J\%F : 16.5%) B & -

HRAEEEE-T-NF=A=1
—BLEFEYERRBGEN - REBE
REBMNEHARERE(CE-N\F:
®) e

P 15 1 45 S0 S B B A 85 1B SR AR 8 7
UM EMERENHERNT

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FAT

Loss before tax PR RIE 1B (29,107) (29,097)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1%16.5% ) & & F| 15 &

16.5% MEFTENBIE (4,803) (4,801)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable HB/ERTU AT ET L (2,614) -
Tax effect of expenses that are not N A] HA R B S A T 7S R 2

deductible 6,700 517
Tax effect of temporary differences not 7k & 2 5] B 2= 28 #9 7 7%

recognised g (92) (310)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k & :R B 18 &5 18 Y §1 75

=2 809 687
Income tax credit g e - (3,907)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

12. FREE

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AREBHFERBESZNG,GFA)T
the following: CIE=3-E
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
oS TEx FAT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% R % BM 650 638
Costs of construction materials EEM B A @) 38,065 83,270
Depreciation e (b) 7,737 8,305
Written off of contract assets MEHAENEE (©) 2,998 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE  HWER
plant and equipment, net BERN RS FEE ) (11) (63)
Operating lease charges wEEERS )
— Hire of plant and equipment — THRA#EREE 8,109 5,290
— Land and buildings — THREF 5,432 3,724

Notes: B 3% -

(@  The amounts included in cost of sales. (@) ZeBEFABENE -

(b)  The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March (o) ZEHEEFABEZTS—NEFERZT—
2019 and 2018 amounted to approximately HK$2,339,000 and NEZAZ+—HIFEHEERA
approximately HK$3,202,000 respectively. 2 BI1#72,339,0007% 7T & #13,202,0007%8

ﬁ: o

(©) The amounts included in administrative and other operating (© ZEHAEHATHEREMELEHE -
expenses.

(d) The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March (d) AABEZZE-NFRZZE-N\F=A

2019 and 2018 amounted to net gain of approximately HK$11,000
and approximately HK$33,000 respectively.

(e) The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 amounted to approximately HK$10,442,000 and
approximately HK$6,782,000 respectively.

=+ HLEFEMNHEERKEANESES
B A F UL Z5 #911,0007 7T & 433,000

IT ©

ZEHEEHABE-TE—NER-_T—
NE=ZA=Z+—HIFEHHEERAE
7 Bl #710,442,00078 JT K& 496,782,000
BT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

13. EERAMAXZ

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 3 TEx FAT
Employee benefits expense EEERAMAZ(BIEE
(including directors’ emoluments):  EE %) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ - fE4L K 2L 50,876 45,341
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE A ET 4L 50
contributions (a) 1,645 1,503
) 52,521 46,844

Notes:
(a) Retirement benefits scheme contributions:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(b) The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 amounted to approximately HK$36,990,000 and
approximately HK$32,785,000 respectively.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13. EEEFMMAX (&)

Notes: (continued) s : (5)
©) Five highest paid individuals: ©) A sEESHEMAL:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FREAEENEUEZSTHALHE
included 2 (2018: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in FoR(ZT—\F:28)EF ' Hi<&
the analysis presented in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining ERMEMF14HDNA - HT3E (=
3 (2018: 3) individuals are set out below: Z-N\F :3R)ALHMSHIMT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Basic salaries and allowances EAXHE KM 4,562 3,458

Retirement benefits scheme contributions & #k 18 | 51 &I it 2k 54 54

4,616 3,512

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BRI & EHES

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Number of person Number of person

Band of emoluments (HK$) B & & E (&) A N

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 21,000,000 7T 1 —

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £1,500,0007% 7T - 3

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 —
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14, BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS:

The emoluments of every Director are set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

1V EFERIINES

(A)

BEEME:
EREENMEBIIWT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

BREAREARAREMBLARBNESCHRRKZHE

Estimated
money  Retirement
Performance value benefits
related of other scheme Housing
Fees Salaries bonuses benefits contributions  allowance Total
HitniEgFl 2
ke EHRERG
ne e RRBL EE BN HEERY @
Notes HK$000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Wi TEx FTEL TExT THERx Tign Ti#gn Ti#n
(note i)
(CiE:)
Executive Directors: WiTES:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairmar) BREXREZE) | = = = - - - -
Mr. Guan Jingdong BERLE i 191 - - - - - 191
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul FRALE i - 1,500 = = = = 1,500
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris BEREE i = 24 = = 1 1,198 1,223
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen REERL i = 499 = = 18 - 517
Independent Non-executive BUFHBTEES:
Directors:
Dr. Luo Tiejian EHBEL i 96 - = = - - %
Dr. Lu Haitian KEEXELT i 9 - = = - - %
Mr. Lin Xin 2Tt i 9% = = = - - 9%
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael W hE i 63 = = = = = 63
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee BRELE i 63 = = = = = 63
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank REBEE i 63 = - - - - 63
Professor Chung Hung Kwan, BRHYE i
Bamabas 63 = = = = = 63
Total for 2019 “E-AEMG 731 2,023 = = 19 1,198 397

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND

(CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED)

(A)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

14,

EEEMRER(R)

A ZEEME: (8B)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FEAREAARZEMBARNEBNESENIERZME

Estimated Retirement
Performance ~ money value benefits
related of other scheme  Housing
Fees Salaries bonuses benefits  contributions  allowance Total
ARl clE  RINERE
ik %4 RARL  teBEE #Hy HEEEE it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TAT FEL TAT FEL FET THEL
(note iv)
(B zEiv)
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul REREE(EE)
(Chairman) - 1,500 - - - - 1,500
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris BEREE - 340 - - 7 860 1,207
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen REERL - 480 - 19 18 - 517
Independent Non-executive ~ BIUFHTEE:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael BEELE 150 - - - - - 150
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee BRELSE 150 - - - - - 150
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank REBLE 150 - - - - - 150
Professor Chung Hung Kwan, & BHEH R
Barnabas 150 - - - - - 150
Total for 2018 ZE-N\E4G 600 2,320 - 19 25 860 3,824
Note: B 3% -
Appointed on 13 August 2018. RZE-NFNAT=BEZ
£ o
i Resigned as director of the Company on 13 August 2018 but i RZZE-NFNA+T=ZHEFAER
retained as director of the subsidiaries at the Group during NAIEE  ERBE_ZT—NF
the year ended 31 March 2019. A=+ HALEFEBRAAER
WEBARIES -
ii Resigned as on 13 August 2018. ii RZZE—NFNAT=BEE -
iv Estimated money value of other benefits include cash iv Bt esBERE

allowances.

No share options or any other forms of share-based
payments were granted to the directors during the year

(2018: Nil).

B Ra e
P A E BT AR AR

EREMEANRNMR(CE
—N\F &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND

15.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2018: Nil).

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the directors’ report and
“Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements, no significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil).

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BRRE IR
(A) BASIC LOSS PER SHARE A FRREREIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on BREAREBBEIIENATARAG
the following: g

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FHE T

Loss for the purpose of calculating  FFTESREAEIEZ

basic loss per share &5 18 (29,107) (25,190)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
000 000
Fie F &
Number of shares KB EE

Weighted average number of ordinary st ESREKREBIEZ
shares for the purpose of calculating & 38 P& hn# S 15 £

basic loss per share 400,000 400,000
(B) DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE B) BREEEE
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company ARARBHEZZE—NEFRZ
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during E-N\FZA=+—HLEFEL
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. BAEMBEEEEERK  RIE

2y EREEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - HRBNRE

Furniture and Plant and Motor
equipment machinery vehicles Total
REARRE HEREW RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FHET THET TET
Cost BA
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tENA—H 1,999 70,447 2,568 75,014
Additions RE 229 20,671 2,280 23,180
Disposals HE - (7.114) (176) (7,290)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 ~ RZ-Z—/\&#=A=1+—H
E=Z-\FMA-A 2,228 84,004 4,672 90,904
Additions RE 121 6,488 425 7,034
Disposals HE = (101) = (101)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+—8H 2,349 90,391 5,097 97,837
Accumulated depreciation Bt E
At 1 April 2017 RZE—t4mA—H 600 16,957 1,096 18,653
Charge for the year FREH 393 6,695 1,217 8,305
Disposals HE - 61) (159) (220)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 ~ R=ZE—/\E=A=1+—H
kZZ-\FMA—A 993 23,591 2,154 26,738
Charge for the year FAZH 408 6,092 1,237 7,137
Disposals & - (32) - (32)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=RA=1+—H 1,401 29,651 3,391 34,443
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-AF=A=+-8 948 60,740 1,706 63,394
At 31 March 2018 W-E—\FZA=+—8 1,235 60,413 2,518 64,166

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance
leases amounted to approximately HK$41,530,000 (2018:

approximately HK$53,312,000).

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. &8
2019 2018
—E-NEF T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FAT
Construction materials EEME 6,431 4,212

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are
stated at cost.

RBERR REENFEUAKAE
JBR

Nay

19. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 19. & 5 FE W Fx 18 & FE U R
E £
2019 2018
=F-NF —E-N\EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FET
Trade receivables B 5 WA () 15,745 14,314
Retention receivables & WUR B & (o) = 37,686
(©) 15,745 52,000
Notes: B 7% -

(@) The Group’s trade receivables represent progress billings
receivables from contract customers. The general credit terms of
trade receivables were within 14 days to 45 days. Application for
progress payment of contract works is made on a regular basis.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

@ AEEMNBEZERREREAHNERPHN
FEUEE SR - B 5 UK IBNE A
BEARI1AAZEASHA - AN ITREE
KT E RS o A B H H R U %
BERBERERE - EETHRTEH

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by directors. ek o
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the NTAREENE S ERKRIEBUAELEE
progress payment, is as follows: R BEENIRE DT
2019 2018
—E-nEF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE&R FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 10,747 14,314
31 to 60 days 31£60H 4,998 -
15,745 14,314

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F iR

145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

19. EZEWMIA R EWRE
& & (48)

Notes: (continued) Miax: (&)
(continued) @ (&)
As at 31 March 2019, approximately HK$1,825,000 (2018: Nil) RZE-—NAF=ZA=Z+—8" %
was past due but not impaired. These related to a number of 1,825,000 7L (ZE—/\F : T) 2@ &
independent customers for whom there were no recent history of BRERRE ZZFESEWRKEIR
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: ZEAATEERCENE LRSS
ZEEFEWKRBEBNERRDITMAT
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,616 —
30 to 60 days 30&60H 209 —
1,825 —
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEEZEWFENREE DRSS
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. JUETE ©
The Group’s retention receivables represent certified contract b AEENERREERDETIR

payments in respect of works performed, for which payments are
withheld by customers for retention purposes, and the amount
retained is withheld on each payment up to a maximum amount
calculated as a prescribed percentage of the contract sum. The
retention receivables should be released to the Group pursuant to
the provisions of the relevant contracts after the completion of the
projects (i.e. 12 months after the completion of the contracts).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, retention receivables are included
in contract assets or contract liabilities on a net basis for a single
contract with the customer (note 20).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s retention receivables of
approximately HK$24,357,000 were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there are no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
retention receivables is as follows:

FIXMERETRMNR  FPHNE
REMRSRNREEMURIE - B
RS2 EREARSBENEER
DHEE - REBEBAAA R KR BUY
REEEREBTARZ(BIALHTREZ
12 A)HETAKE -

RNEBH I MEENE155EE - EUK
RESHETFHE-SOZFEE
EFAANEERADHARE (PIFE20) -

R-ZZE—NFZA=+—8 4A&H
ERHESRRENERRESDQ
24,357,000/ 7 ° xS RURE @&
LRI BEBREHENBILIEE -
ZERWRESNELSTOT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FET

Less than 3 months LHSE A 850
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 66
Over 6 months 61E A A £ 23,441
24,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

EZRWREARERRKR

(CONTINUED) B £ (48)
Notes: (continued) e - (88)
(b)  (continued) ) (&)
As at 31 March 2018, the amount of the Group’s retention RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 " B HR

receivables expected to be recovered after more than twelve months

was approximately HK$5,425,000.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention receivables are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(c) As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a factoring (c)
arrangement and transferred certain trade and retention receivables
to a bank. If these receivables are not paid at maturity, the bank
has the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled balances.
As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amounts of the receivables. Cash received from the bank
are recognised as factoring loans and are disclosed in note 25 to

the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the trade receivables
and retention receivables under contract assets or contract liabilities
that have been transferred but have not been derecognised
amounted to approximately HK$10,097,000 (2018: approximately
The carrying amount of the factoring loans
financed as at 31 March 2019 is approximately HK$6,030,000 (2018:

HK$16,992,000).

approximately HK$8,019,000).

20. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK)

B+ A A R m Y AR R R
& & R 45,425,000/ 7T °

ﬁ‘i@ﬂgﬂﬂ%lﬁﬂ’ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁém

ERATEHO— 8D NEEIZ—
FEREZH BEETESEEHA
RERRESEET KRR o 2
ERWBKBEL KRB - AIRITH
EREBRAGEINRELEES - &
RAGEBEYEEEEZERKKIEE
FIVEDNEN-PAEE R E §
SRBAENEHREE - BRTH
BHWRSERAREERRRERE
BB mRM 25 -

R-Z—-h&E=A=+—HB @z
BEHRRIERANBEESANAR
BTHESREBFERERRESH
BRE{E 410,097,000/ 70 (=T —\&F -
#916,992,000/8 L) - RZZE— N F =
A=+—H EHEOREEROE®D
B 496,030,000 T (ZZF — NF: 4
8,019,000/ 7T) °

EHNEE (AB)N(Z=F
—N\F Bl (BT
FEHNITERERAE)

(2018:

2018
—\F
HK$'000
FAT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits & & #% B IF EE £ B & £ AK A hn

less recognised losses to date B HE R 8 MR 2 HE R B 1R 910,785
Less: Progress billings S (828,907)
81,878

Gross amounts due from customers EREFPAEXHNTEFIARE
for contract work (note) (FF5F) 84,103

Gross amounts due to customers BNREFEHNTIIERIBLERE
for contract work (2,225)
81,878
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (2018:

GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK)
(CONTINUED)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included
as “Gross amount due from customers for contract work”,
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” and
“retention receivables” were reclassified to contract assets or
contract liabilities on a net basis for a single contract with the
customer.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

.88 EE (8 &=

2\ IR ()
EEANIRKNELHE)
(1)

RER N E B B 75 5 R 1657 1% -
REFIEITRREF AN ITRREKIAR
B ENEPAENIRERARLREIN
EERESINFESTHREEFPNE
—ANRFREEEN N BREANE
EXANEAE -

31 March 1 April 31 March

2019 2018 2018

—B-AE —F-N\FE —F-N\&F

Contract assets EHEE =RA=+—H mA—R =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
T FHET FET

Arising from performance under REEBITEES LUK
construction contracts (note) (P 5E) 150,009 119,725 -

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from
customers under construction contracts that arise when the
Group receives payments from customers in line with a series
of performance related milestones.

There were no significant changes in the contract assets
balances during the reporting period.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous period is approximately HK$18,205,000, mainly due to
the changes in estimate of the stage of completion of certain
construction contracts.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (2018: 20. & 89 & E (& &E)(=

GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) ZE-N\F:ER (EM)
(=0 ] =1
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK) EFGHNIEMIELEE)
(CONTINUED) (48)
The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered FEREBB—FRNENENEESSE
after more than one year is approximately HK$2,851,000 (2018: #52,851,0008 L (ZE—N\F : &) °
Nil).
31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-NEFE —ZE-N\F —ZE-N\F
Contract liabilities &HEaE =H=+—H mA—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
T FHET FHT
Bilings in advance of J& 4978 W k1B
performance obligation
— Construction contracts — BEEH 531 161 —
Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are FHERECANEGHNARIMESES
balances due to customers under construction contracts. NENEPRES - W5 TE 2EEN
These arise if a particular milestone payment exceeds the HBBBERALAERERZESH
revenue recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method. IR s - Blg IR EatE R -
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities ERBEEHESRNREHAT REEE
balances during the reporting period. 1t -
Movements in contract liabilities: aHBaEZS:
2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
FiEx
Balance at 1 April R A—BZ &% 161
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HERNERBRAZHHEHNEERD
recognising revenue during the year was FABYVIEOAE
included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the period (161)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of REEETHBERABEHENEE
billing in advance of construction activities & 531
Balance at 31 March R=ZA=+—Rz#&% 531
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

21.

(2018:
GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK)
(CONTINUED)

None of billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(2018: Nil).

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has been
negotiating the final settlement amount of a completed contract
with a customer. The customer indicated that it is seeking to
deduct from the final settlement amount the sum of approximately
HK$23,450,000 for the LD. Up to the date of these consolidated
financial statements, the negotiations with the customer are still in
progress.

The directors are of the opinion that the negotiations with the
customer are still in progress and based on the opinion of an
independent professional consultant, believe that such LD is
unlikely to succeed and accordingly, the Group has not recognised
any amounts in respect of the LD in the consolidated financial
statements.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

20.

21,

EHEE (&&=
B—N\F:EW (ER)
EFEHNTIEMIERE)
(%)

890 410 — OF 14 B R BB 9
AR (=B —\F ) o

Wi RBEE=T—NAF=A=+—A1LHF
B AEE-EHEH-FRFPERH—ED
EREHNNEREERE - EF XX
HEHAMEN RO NREEERIE
#923,450,0008 7T © Bl EARLRE W5
KAH HEFHERDAEETE -

EERA EEPHERDEELETE
POERBEVEXBRANER &
ERRBHEEHSTARAIBERRKY -
Ht - REEY SN EE BB RERP
REHNEHREMNSE -

EEB|ITENR RIT
RBE 2GR

4 B 0 B AR 1T BRI T 4R
FTHTE R LAYE 7 7 SR (B2 13 8R 17 A
AR (WA A B R M 3E25) -

BEARTERARRTRES B
AT A A

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

Hong Kong dollars BT 81,950 22,664
Renminbi AR 64 64
82,014 22,728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

22. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

kA

2. BEZENREREMSRK

2019 2018
=F-NF —EBN\EF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & THEx FAT
Trade payables B ENFIE (@) 76,450 33,498
Retention payables EARES (b) 13,297 11,590
89,747 45,088
Notes: B
(@  The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the (@) ATAAREE®NE S FE R 5 IE L UER
date of receipt of goods/services, is as follows: S,/ R B E A ENIRE ST
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z&30H 50,319 16,602
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 8,139 9,469
61 to 90 days 61H Z90H 7,201 538
Over 90 days 90H M £ 10,791 6,889
76,450 33,498
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEEBZEMNZIENEREE DRSS
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. TLEHE ©
(o) As at 31 March 2019, the amount of the Group's retention ) RZE-AF=A=+—80" EBit#HR

payables expected to be due after more than twelve months was
approximately HK$1,852,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,073,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention payables are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

B+ {8 A% B H A A K E E AR E
% £ 491,852,000/ 0 (=& — )\ F :
#92,073,000/% 7T) ©

AEBEEMRESHKREETDRET

SHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. B ERRHMEH
o
L]
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\&E
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
Accruals FEETER 6,412 6,665
Other payables H b fE AT 5RIE 5,033 265
11,445 6,930
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other REBEWEGTER K HE BN RIERN
payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. BREE Y IRBTEE -
= > =
24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 24, MEHEREMNMIE
In the consolidated statement of financial position, obligations RIFEMBRRE  SBEZRERKER
under finance leases due for repayment after one year which GEREBR—FRIBEENRENR
contain repayment on demand clause were classified as EETEIH Y BEATDEE -BE
current liabilities. The maturity of obligations under finance HEETEENIBBRET:

leases is as follows:

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEHERR RERENRNRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E —E-NE —E-N\E
HK$100_0 HK$'000 HK$100_0 HK$'000
TEx TET TExT FTEL
Within one year —FR 9,995 12,562 9,433 11,535
In the second to fifth years, F-_ZREF
inclusive (BEEEME) 7,460 17,449 7,303 16,730
17,455 30,011 16‘,736 28,265
Less: Future finance charges BRRRES A (719) (1,746) N/AT & B N/AT i F
Present value of lease obligations & & T #HE 16,736 28,265 16,736 28,265
Less: Amount due for settlement 5 : BRM21E AR B EER
within 12 months (shown BB (AR E
under current liabilities) BEETIR) (15,924) (26,397)
Amount due for settlement BR12(E A% B BER
after 12 months M 812 1,868

152 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24, B EHEEARIE(E)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant
and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term
is 4 years (2018: 4 years). As at 31 March 2019, the average
effective borrowing rate was approximately 3.71% (2018:
approximately 3.75%). As at 31 March 2019, finance lease
payables of approximately HK$11,661,000 (2018: approximately
HK$17,702,000) bear fixed interest rate at the inception of the
lease and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The remaining finance lease payables are arranged at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At the
end of each lease term, the Group has the option to purchase
the property, plant and equipment at a nominal price.

Except for finance lease payables amounted to approximately
HK$2,424,000 (2018: approximately HK$3,031,000), the
remaining finance lease payables contain clause which give the
lenders the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group has
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

None of the portion of finance lease payables due for
repayment after one year which contains a repayment on
demand clause and that is classified as a current liability is
expected to be settled within one year.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

In addition, most of the Group’s finance lease payables are
secured by (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$41,530,000 (2018: approximately
HK$53,312,000) and (i) corporate guarantee executed by the
Company.

NEEHERRE TYE BER
REAEAEENEEK - FHFE A4
F(ZE—N\F 4F) - RZZE—NF
—A=+—H FHEBRERNELH
3.71% (ZZ—/)\F : #3.75%) - R=ZE
—NFZRA=+—H mEHEREN
FRIE 4911,661,000 Bt (=& —/)\F :
#917,702,0007% 7T) * ¥ 1L & 5] 3L ¥
METEMEGTE  AmMSASEEEG
ANFEMNERR - TrEHREEN
RERZHANEFTE  SASEMmME
REeEREFERR FIEHEERET
EEZEH - MW BB AR S 3G
SAERZHE c REHBLERE - AE
BAEENREREBREEYE - K
K& o

B BB FE B JE S 308 492,424,000 7T
(ZZ—)\4F : 493,031,000 7T) 5p - £
TREAEERMNZIEELSS FTHFTA
A BT E RS EMN 2 2B
BEZE MTwmALEEREEE
FHERFAFTEEREME -

MEHFRERKEEGRIAR —F&
IMEEADEARDRENRER
ERMNFRERLY BN —FABME -

AR ERERNRBEHAETHE °

N AEBAES>NBERESE
NEEBAOAEEDE - #E L&
1 4941,530,0008 L (= — )\ F : 4
53,312,000/ 7t) K (i) A A R B2 3 2 A
AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS

25. $RITIE

2019 2018

=F-NF —EB-N\E

HK$’000 HK$’000

THEx FAT

Bank loans RITER 8,333 10,000
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 2,428 —
Trust receipt loans EREWBE R 10,607 11,988
Factoring loans R E R 6,030 8,019
27,398 30,007

The bank borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The average interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group

REE 2 RITRERBR ZKS

i3
i

.
I

§

A TTEHE -

RB|ERR  NREBERITERNFY

at the end of the reporting period were as follows: FEMT:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Bank overdrafts RITEX 4.73% -
Bank loans IRITE 4.73% 3.68%
Trust receipt loans FERRBEBER 4.03% 4.16%
Factoring loans REER 4.88% 3.13%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s credit facilities are secured
by:

(i) The Group’s trade receivables and retention receivables
under contract assets or contract liabilities of

approximately HK$10,097,000 (2018: trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$16,992,000);

(i)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$10,214,000 (2018: approximately HK$10,138,000);

(i)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company.
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A_E-NEFE=ZA=+—H TEEH
EERERAATEBERER:

(0

(i

(i)

REEENEERAHABET
ZESRERZEREKRES
#310,097,000/8 T (ZZF — N\F :
EoRERRFERERRESLD
16,992,000/8 7T) :

AEBZEEBETFERY
10,214,000 L (ZE—\F : 49
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25.

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank borrowings contain clauses which give the
lenders the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group has
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with loan
covenants. Its repayments up to date are in accordance with
the scheduled repayments of the term loans. The Group
does not consider that the banks will probably exercise their
discretions to demand repayments so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER BORROWING, UNSECURED

Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, New Grace Gain provided an unsecured loan
of HK$100,000,000 (“‘Unsecured Loan”) to the Company on
25 May 2018. The Unsecured Loan was interest-free and
repayable on 25 November 2020. New Grace Gain shall not
be entitled to demand early repayment and the Company has
no right to make early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

At the inception date of 25 May 2018, the fair value of
the Unsecured Loan was determined at approximately
HK$85,390,000, which was valued by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach.
In subsequent periods, the Unsecured Loan is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the Unsecured Loan is 6.52%.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, imputed interest income
of approximately HK$14,610,000 (2018: Nil) and imputed
interest expense of approximately HK$4,616,000 (2018: Nil)
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the Unsecured
Loan was approximately HK$90,006,000 (2018: Nil).

25.

26.

RITE RN (4])

AR ERTERANBEER - A
FEETEUTRERRTLEITE
EEBREE  RMBERETER
A 15 BB 2 A o D O 4 7
B HER «

AEEETHMERERAEETERE
e HBEBRRMERIREBERK
MERERRET AEERAR
AEBEETAZERE BRI
RAERTEEERERNRNEE - A
BAAEERDHECRAREENE—HF
HBEHNEA W B HRRIE6(E) °

Hit g - B H

BB EE W= 2R New Grace
GanR—ZZE—NFHAZ-+THBMRAX
A AR it #3595 B 5)100,000,000/% 7T
(EEBERD - BEEFERAE B
WER-_ZE_FTF+—H=-THHAE
i o New Grace Gain#5 & # 2512 5
B BARRUEEFNLEERERE
FIRBIE N -

REYEBEHRE -_ZT—N\FRA-T+EH
B #8XFEZRNAFEETAEY
85,390,000 7L * kYl — BB L E
EHEMFEABRREREZITGEE
e REBHE EXHERFERE
BRAF R R B A AN IR o EIKIE
BERRNERMNEA6.52% °

REBEZE-_ZT—AFZA=1+—8I*F
E - HEE R B YA 414,610,000/ 7T
TE-N\F )R HENBEATY
4,616,000 (ZE—\F : T)E D5
RircEmMNEMEEKRERER -

RZZE-hE=A=+—H EEHE

XK BR T {8 49./90,006,000/8 7T (=&
—N\F:F)o
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The following is the deferred tax liabilites and assets recognised
by the Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

27. IEEHLIE

AEBERRNBEEHAREREE
mE o

Losses available
for offsetting

Accelerated tax against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
CIRE:3i4:]
RIRFERH
MERIBRE A A 1R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMHA—H 3,907 - 3,907
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss for £RHNE (5t A) Bz
the year (note 11) (B 5E11) 2,445 (6,352) (3,907
At 31 March 2018 and RZZE—N\E=A=+—H
1 April 2018 E_ZF—-N\FMA—H 6,352 (6,352) —
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss for R H (5t A) Bz
the year (note 11) (FF3E11) 1,192 (1,192) —
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-—hF=A=+—H 7,544 (7,544) —

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses
and other deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$92,644,000 and HK$743,000 (2018: approximately
HK$80,513,000 and Nil) respectively available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$45,721,000 (2018: HK$38,495,000) of such
tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$46,923,000
(2018: HK$42,018,000) and other deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. g AR

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
Authorised: VETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% & fi%
HK$0.01 each H{E0.018 T 2 & X 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.01 each H{E0.01E L2 & M\ 4,000 4,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are
mainly: (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the total number
of the shares in issue; and (i) to meet financial covenants
attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
which demonstrates that the Group is continuing in compliance
with the 25% limit throughout the year.

Pursuant to the joint announcement published on 7 August
2018 (the “Joint Announcement 2”), immediately after the close
of mandatory unconditional cash offer, a total of 31,750,000
ordinary shares, representing approximately 7.94% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
Joint Announcement 2, are held by the public. Accordingly, the
Company cannot fulfill the minimum public float requirement
set out under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

AEETRERNERAREAEE
S BRI ) BB BB (LT
RRATERTLEBRFRGESD
% -

AEEEREBREAXNANBEEE
AR RR IR ERZERRE
AEEREBRMNRE - BITHBRK
Befn M A RETHER BRRA
BEERHEEENRDEBHN T AT
BHEBEARRE -

REBFEXRPATINRERRE -
WERARFREAZRL/EEITED
HEEE25% - AR E RN B FTR £
T ¢ B2 (i) 2 3R 1T 8 R PR BN O B 7%
e

AEEBRARERNBPRETRED
BTERBFRENERNRNERD
BE ZBRERRAEEREEAFE
N—H BF25%H [RER

BERZZE—N\FNALB T EHH
ARE(BAERNE2]) BHEEEITEE
BB Z4EE1E - 4 2£81,750,000
fREREEGEE R & A 52HBHAR
A2 HEEITRAZ £97.94%) B AR
BHE- Al ARBIREFELETHR
Rl %8.08(1)(@) & FT 8 WY & 1K & RI#F IR
EHRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Subsequent to 7 August 2018, the Company arranged
placement of the Company’s shares on hand to restore the
required minimum public float. Pursuant to the announcement
published by the Company on 30 October 2018, immediately
upon completion of a placing of 68,250,000 ordinary shares
in the Company, a total of 100,000,000 shares, representing
25% of the issued shares of the Company are held by the
public. As such, the public float of the Company has been
restored to not less than 25% of the issued share capital of
the Company in compliance with the Listing Rule with effect
from the completion of the placing.

Save as mentioned above, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

Breaches to fulfill the financial covenants would permit the bank
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time or part-
time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
other contractors, business partners of the Company or any
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 19 February
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the Listing Date and any shares of the
Company which may be allotted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the offer size adjustment option. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any twelve months period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. BRAD A FR (L&)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve months period
up to and including the date of the grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iiij the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the offer date, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since
adoption of the Scheme.

BYARRIZEE  TETBRAEREE
RSB EALZEBRESR
KB IERITES FRBLE o 1IN
REM+_EAASB(EELRBERE
BE)AR MR FARREERELB
VIHATESTRFESIMAHEALZ
TREREBARARTARBEZES
BTRMH01% KRB R EHBEBAR
A% B 5T E 2 4218 8 185,000,000
BT BIZAGEBRERBREARG EEL
HEfE -

BTRBEEZEZHARARAZNS
EREAKVETE B EHBBER
ARAEM - IR BRE ZTTE
THEFETE - YRXREMRAS
ETERBEREZOEHESAFR
ZetEEME R AP ERE) THE -

BREZTEERESET  ETHE
BRUTZH&ESENAQRRHDNE
REZHAPEBIMELHNST AR
BRATZETE: (AR ROHNE
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BRI R TR A AMEUBLE S
BERREREZERM -

BEMZA &R - MEREBEZA SR
P R A

BT EEZERBIRAT 2018/19 Fif

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=+—-BILFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

BRE

30. A7) B 35 AR R Rk K A

(A) ARRBIF AR FK

At 31 March 2019
F

At 31 March 2018

R=F-H RZE—-N\F
ZE=+-B  ZA=t-
Note HK$j00_0 HK$\’0070
It & THT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FHBERRMNEE - -
Due from a subsidiary ER—RMBARFE 82,183 88,119
82,183 88,119
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables YA FE » &4 & H b BB 1,114 -
Due from a subsidiary Bl —FHBLRRE 50,000 22
Bank and cash balances ROIRRE L 54,714 7
105,828 29
Current liabilities RBAaRE
Accruals and other payables ﬁ’é SRAREME f 3 %‘K B 5,768 -
Due 1o a subsidiary EN-zHEARR - -
5,768 —*
Net current assets RHEERE 100,060 29
Total assets less current liabilities BEEARDERE 182,243 88,148
Non-current liabilities FREBaE
Other borrowing, unsecured Hib &30 BER 90,006 -
NET ASSETS BERE 92,287 88,148
Capital and reserves BRRfEE
Share capital B 28 4,000 4,000
Reserves i 30(b) 88,237 84,148
TOTAL EQUITY RGUE 92,287 88,148
Represents the amount less than HK$1,000. E & 81,0008 7T ©
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019 @EESN-_T—NEXH -+

and signed on its behalf by:

BHESHATEERERER

Chen Rongsheng

P ml B2
Executive Director

HITEF
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REMBHRHNE
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RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. AT MR R T R

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY e (E)
(CONTINUED)
(B) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B) ARAIHEE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share retained
premium profits Total equity
(REtEHE)
R&EE REEF HEEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAET
(note 31(b))
(BY3E31(0))
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+FWMA—H 84,403 (87) 84,316
Loss and total comprehensive income 4F A 18 & % W %5 48
and changes in equity for the year %8 R & - (168) (168)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=-ZT—\F=A
= e =03
—“Z-N\FMA—H 84,403 (255) 84,148
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 73 A1l & % T 4¢3 42
and changes in equity for the year %8 i x5 & - 4,089 4,089
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A
=+—H 84,403 3,834 88,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

31. RESERVES

(A)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
73 and 76 of the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report

31. R

(A)

R
AEBFRTBEREZH DR
REMBBMRETBRTICAN LGS
BakHEMEEEDERARES
BaEBEBREY -

%

\
Q
N

S

B An 4 (8

REFASHSARE  AAAR
5% EERNE S THDRFAD
FIRRR - iR EHE DR BB
Bk ARRARENEEER
BEEBBRTCHNNES

BinaBRASR SO EE
MERBEITROMELENEE -
I B R EARNMCETRB D %
TTAAS ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

32. SUBSIDIARIES

32.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are as

B I 2 =
KoE—NF= A=+ —BHHEBAT

follows: BT
Place of
incorporation/ Date of Percentage of ownership
establishment and incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name operation establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activity
REMER LB 3 0 B BROTR  WAES /REE/
1 RSB MR/ HIA S BRERE MERRESL  FEREH
Direct Indirect
B e &
K. H. Development British Virgin Islands 13 August 2015 US$100 100% — Investment holding
Holdings Limited EBRAEE “ET-RFNA+ZA 100% 1T BREER
K. H. Civil Engineering ~ Hong Kong 5 March 2001 HK$100 - 100%  Provision of foundation
Limited services
FMLtRIRERRAR FA —ZT-%=A1A 100/ 7T R ER
K. H. Foundations Limited Hong Kong 4 January 1985 HK$32,962,000 - 100%  Provision of foundation
services
B EFRAR BB —“ANRE—-AME 329620007 7T R ERS
K. H. Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong 15 September 2006 HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Rl ERERRE e —ERERFAATRR BT RERK
K. H. Machinery Limited Hong Kong 23 January 2007 HK$3,000 - 100% Leasing of machinery
Bl HMAERAR BA “ERrE-A-T=R 3,000 7 BREE
K. H. Piling & Engineering Hong Kong 8 November 2012 HK$100 - 100% Inactive
Limited
BMTBEIRARAR FA “Z-—F+-ANH 100/ 7T ETBEEH

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
(A)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(i) Additions of property, plant and equipment for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$20,221,000 were financed by
finance leases.

BEARFBERH

() BE-—Z-N\NF=ZAZ=
+—BLEEE 28
20,221,000 7T ) ¥ % -
WERBRERAEHBER
EENES -

(A)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NAF=R=+—HILFE

GeReRiERK
(%)

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF aE

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

33.

(A)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(CONTINUED)

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, imputed
interest income of approximately HK$14,610,000
(2018: Nil) and imputed interest expense of
approximately HK$4,616,000 (2018: Nil) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details of the changes in

(A)

BEXRFRERF(E)

HE-Z—NF=A=1+—
HIEFE #ERHEKRA
#714,610,000/ 7T (=& —
NE - E)RBEENERAL
#14,616,0008 7T (ZZE— N\
F B ID RN ABE
REMEZEKRZRER -

MELRMELBEN

¥ iR
TRIFAEERE T HMELE

(i

the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, BENEDFE  BEReRIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities Re@e  MEITBAELAR

arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

DEEREREXARAREDR
ERAEEGARERERTD
ERRERYMGBREREN
BfE-

Other
Finance lease Bank borrowing,
payables borrowings unsecured Total
MEHRE HfE5
FEf% 5K R RITER EIEA at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
(note 24) (note 25) (note 26)
(Bt %24) (Fff 5225) (Ff7E26)
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE-\EMA—-A 28,265 30,007 - 58,272
Changes from financing cash flows: REMEREREZEH:
Borrowings raised BERITER - 81,611 100,000 181,611
Repayment of bank borrowings BERBTER - (86,648) - (86,648)
Repayment of finance lease payables EEBERERNFA (11,529) - - (11,529)
Other changes: Hit#8:
Imputed interest income (note 33(a)(i) 1R B (B 5E33(@) i) - - (14,610) (14,610)
Imputed interest expense (note 33(a)(ii) 18R 85 52 (B 3233 @) i) - - 4,616 4,616
(11,529) (5,037) 90,006 73,440
As at 31 March 2019 W-E-h&E=ZA=+—-H 16,736 24,970 90,006 131,712
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34.

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
provided guarantees to an insurance company as follows:

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Guarantees on performance bonds for BREEALNBLRES
construction contracts RHEER 50,312 33,388

(b)  In May 2015, a subcontractor claimed against the Group
for certain construction works (the “Dispute”). The total
amount of claim by the subcontractor is approximately
HK$20,329,000. The Group and the subcontractor
agreed to resolve their Dispute by arbitration or by other
means of dispute resolution.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the arbitration is still in the process and there is
no conclusive decision to resolve the Dispute. The
management, after taking external legal advice, considers
that it is pre-mature to assess the outcome for the said
claim.

Pursuant to the deed of indemnity executed by the then
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company,
New Grace Gain and its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr.
Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert and Mr.
Yue Suen Leung, in favour of our Company, each of them
has irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
agreed to indemnify the Group against, among others,
all loss and damages arising from the Dispute.

Accordingly, no provision has been made for the claim.

R-ZE—RFEFRR —EHEHE
mETRETIR(UBDARE
BRRHRE -ZOEANRER
5 4 520,329,000 7T ° A&
FEZHBEEEREEBMAEHIE
At Rk o R E AL 4 -

BEAGAMBHRERAY - HH
MEETT - BXEBRAUGH &
RETE - BEEEBEZRINEEAR
BRERR HELEAREGR
) B 4% i T RO RR o

BEARAREFIZERBREREFE
% B New Grace Gaink EZKRE
mHBANGFPEE - B FREL
ERFRBREEURRF AZ @
AMBYRNBERERE  #%
FZEEET AU R EK R
FERRE  st(EheHE) Al
mmEERN—BARIBEERE
MASBEELREE -

At - W EB A RETTREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
RE-T-NEF=R=F—HLFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAEIE
No Group’s capital commitments at the end of reporting period RBERR  AEBEHMEERRE(CZ
(2018: Nil). T N\F M|
36. LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. HE &iE
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum REERR T BEEEHETE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are NMRRFEAENKRBRELOT:
payable as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T F#& T
Within one year —FR 3,732 2,597
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF
(BREEEMT) 517 316
4,249 2,913
Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by LEHENREEREAEEARPEAE -
the Group for its offices, staff quarters and warehouses. Leases BETIEEREERMNNES - HOK
are negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals MEE T AEME  HeaRNEHA
are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent BFALTBFIAES -
rentals.
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. A E X H

(@ In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following material

(@ FMREEMBREREMMITEEDN
ZEBBR TR REHIN KK
ERENGEEEB T ETAT

transaction with its related party during the year: EARS:
2019 2018
—E-hn¥F —ZT—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Rental expenses charged by a related — 5 B8 B A &) W EX A9
company HemMx 1,468 1,368

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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REMBHRHNE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=RA=+—-HILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a former director of the
Company, who resigned on 13 August 2018 but still
retained as a director of the subsidiaries of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019, has beneficial
interest in this related company.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the

37. FE A X 3 (1)

ARAIMEZFHEEFRALEER
“E-N\FNAA+=HABEAR
AEE BRBE-_FT-NAF=
A=t —-BLEFENEECAEH
MBARES) N ZM@E A RHE

s
2 3 b 5e
BEmEm o

) AEBTIEZEBRABFMH:

Group:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\&E
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Short term employee benefits HHEERT 9,619 8,237
Pension scheme contributions RARET &I 5% 79 97

Total compensation paid to key MEEERABLMANH
management personnel B2 R 9,698 8,334

Further details of employee benefits expense and
directors’ emoluments are included in note 13 and note
14 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

38. APPROVED OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June
2019.

EHREEFNLREFHG 0
i — 5 DRI G A BB
R FE1BR M HE14 -

38. it B I ER 3R

HEMBHRRENR _ZT-AFANAZ
TNHEESSHENRRET % -

BT EBIERBR AT 2018/19 F iR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

AEEBEAANREFENERREER
BEHERIIMT
BE=A=1+T—HLFEZ
X4E

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —N\F ZE2—+tF —ZT—RF = —RF
HK$100_0 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FiBx FHETT FET FBT FET
Revenue Wz 203,015 225,579 125,589 494,135 357,313
Cost of sales 8 & B AN (201,188)  (222,759) (121,014) (416,341) (287,401
Gross profit EF 1,827 2,820 4,575 77,794 69,912
Other income H i U A 15,921 137 171 2,046 749
Administrative and other THREMEERS
operating expenses (40,589) (30,624) (38,203) (28,139) (13,600)
(Loss)/Profit from operations & & Fi15 (F518),/
v Al (22,841) (27,667) (83,457) 51,701 57,061
Finance costs B & AR (6,266) (1,430) (936) (995) (778)
(Loss)/Profit before tax B AT (EB) R F (29,107) (29,097) (34,393) 50,706 56,283
Income tax credit/(expense) FIEFE R, (BX) = 3,907 544 (10,403) (9,702)
(Loss)/Profit and total RAFHEAANEIEFR
comprehensive income (B18), i Al &
for the year attributable to 2 HE W F # 5
owners of the Company (29,107) (25,190) (33,849) 40,303 46,581

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH

R=ZA=+—HzZzEEK
af\

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NEF —N\F ZE—tF ZT—RF —hF
HK$100_0 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FHT FHET FHT FHT
Total assets BEHE 327,270 237,529 244,536 336,041 264,095
Total liabilities aELsE (235,863) (112,515) (94,332)  (151,988) (183,548
Net assets BEFE 91,407 125,014 150,204 184,053 80,547
Note: M 3
The summary of the results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and AEEREBE_ZT—RAF A=+t HLEFEMNERA
of the assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 has been extracted from the rR-_E—RFE A=+ —HBNEERABEREE
prospectus of the Company dated 8 March 2016 and certain comparative figures HEARRBHA—T—R"F=ZANBZHEEERE -
were reclassified to conform to the presentation following the identification of the BEEThHREFERBE-S—ELF=A=1+— EI
business segment of Leasing during the year ended 31 March 2017. HFEEHNHENEEY»BEERETH»E UFE

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2018/19 Annual Report
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